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To achieve Industry Leadership in Auto Retailing
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Organic-Operational Excellence
Growth through Portfolio Enrichment
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Stockholders’ Letter

Dear Stockholders,

Sonic Automotive continued to demonstrate the validity of its operating initiatives and its long-term strategy
during 2007. As we look back on this past year, we walk away with two main perspectives—it was a very
challenging year but it was also a very rewarding year. We were able to grow our business internally, complete a
number of quality acquisitions, improve our margins and increase our earnings in a year when we experienced a
challenging macroeconomic environment. This was the result of the successful implementation of several critical
operating initiatives which we will discuss in more detail later in this letter.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

During 2007, our overall revenues grew over 4% 1o $8.3 billion. In a challenging new vehicle sales
environment, our gross margin improved 10 basis points to 15.5%. We continued our assault on variable
operating expenses and reduced our SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit by almost 200 basis points to
74.9%. We are proud to report that this is the best SG&A performance in the sector when you adjust the peer
group for differences in real estate carrying costs. Qur business model once again made it very apparent that
there is much more to our business than just seiling new cars. In 2007, over 60% of our gross profit came from
the higher-margin segments of our business which generated less than 20% of our revenues. Our multiple sources
of revenue combined with our ability to control variable operating expenses is what makes automotive retailing a
compelling investment opportunity.

OPERATING INITIATIVES

Used Vehicles—Our used vehicle strategy reflects the fact that the more patient you are the more satisfying
the reward is in the end. During 2007, we completed the 18 month rollout of Phase I of our used vehicle
inventory and merchandising strategy. The results have been consistently strong same store used vehicle sales
growth quarter after quarter since early 2006. These results tell us several things:

1) The secret is not in the technology—it’s in the culture. That's why we patiently took our time to
introduce this to our stores. We knew we weren’t just introducing some new technology system that
would automatically improve our performance. We were asking our people to change the way they
think about sourcing, pricing, advertising and selling used vehicles, That’s a culture shift and it takes
time to do it right.

2)  Process standardization works. One of the greatest benefits our business model brings to automotive
retailing is the ability to capitalize on our proven best practices. We know how to develop operating
solutions and then successfully implement them across our entire portfolio of dealerships.

3) There is long-term potential in this strategy. We saw the same thing every time we rolled this strategy
out to a new region—our associates embraced it and our used vehicle business improved dramatically.

We have now started the rollout of Phase 1I of our used vehicle inventory and merchandising strategy.
While Phase I focused on basic process standardization, Phase TI will focus on inventory optimization and, in
particular, getting inventory in the right place at the right price. This next phase will allow us to leverage our
standardized processes and our technology tools to efficiently move used vehicles between stores to further
improve inventory turns and increase the gross profit on each vehicle sale. We recognize that this next phase is as
much a culture shift as the first phase and we will approach it in exactly the same manner. We will train one
region at a time to make sure the new approach becomes an embedded practice in those dealerships before
introducing it to the next region. We believe used vehicles continue to represent a tremendous growth
opportunity for Sonic Automotive.




Single Dealer Management System-—This is another initiative that we had been working on for a long
time and completed in 2007. All of our stores now operate on the same technology platform. This concept sounds
so basic but takes so much time to effectively introduce to all of our dealerships. In the few days it takes to
convert a system at one store we can turn our associates” world upside down by changing something they have
interacted with on a daily basis for their entire career. The challenge has always been to accomplish that change
without negatively affecting the business. Now that we have the roliout behind us, we can begin to share and
utilize our data to make better business decisions in ways that weren’t possible before.

Electronic menu—We also completed the implementation of our electronic F&I menu in 2007. All of our
stores now present our F&I products and services the same way to each of our customers. This results in a more
consistent presentation by our sales associates, an enhanced understanding by our customers and a better car
buying experience.

ACQUISITION ACTIVITY

During 2007, we acquired four premium luxury dealerships representing approximately $500 million in
annual revenues. Although the annual revenues from acquisitions was less than what we had targeted at the
beginning of 2007, this is representative of both our financial discipline and our ability to expand our business
organically when fiscally-sound acquisition opportunities are not available. We have said for a number of years
that we are not in the business of growth for growth’s sake and we don’t intend to change that strategy. We do
exactly what you as stockholders would expect us to do—we critically examine every acquisition opportunity to
ensure it meets our brand, geographic and investment criteria. The dealerships we acquired this year met all those
criteria—premium brands in great markets that we were able to acquire at competitive prices.

As we look forward into 2008 and beyond, we do not see a change to that strategy. We will not chase
acquisitions but we will pursue prudent investment opportunities that become available. To the extent those
opportunities are not available, we will use our cash flow to reduce our leverage, invest in our facilities and
repurchase our stock.

FINANCIAL STRATEGY

The core of our financial strategy is to prudently pursue acquisition opportunities. We aiso remain
committed to maintaining our leverage target of between 35%-40% debt to total capital. We worked hard to
achieve our leverage target and we intend to maintain it.

While those pieces of our financial strategy remain constant, we are thinking differently about how we
finance our dealership properties. Historically, we have financed our real estate through sale-leaseback
transactions. In the early years, access to this type of financing gave our young company the capital it needed to
grow. Given the amount of cash flow we now generate and the types of acquisitions we are now pursuing, we
believe there are benefits to owning our real estate. There is the financial benefit of being able to finance our real
estate at a more competitive rate along with the intangible benefit of having the control to do what we want with
the property. During 2007, we obtained mortgages totaling $46 million on four dealership properties. We expect
to add another $90 million in new mortgage financing as we complete various facility projects in 2008.

During 2007, we repurchased almost $50 million of our stock. Most of this was funded by the sale of our
finance subsidiary, Cornerstone Acceptance. Opportunistically repurchasing our stock remains one of the core
pieces of our financial strategy as we allocate our capital among the many available choices.




FUTURE OUTLOOK

Our strategy for the future is very simple. We want to leverage the core automotive retail principles that
have driven our past success across an expanding dealership portfolio. We intend to do that by focusing on
1) continually improving our operations by further institutionalizing our proven best practices, 2) delivering an
industry-leading customer experience, 3) growing our business through acquisitions, and 4) recruiting and
retaining the very best talent in the industry by investing in their ongoing development. Many companies say
great things about their commitment to their people but at Sonic Automotive we put it into practice. We
recognize that the value of Sonic Automotive rests in our people. They are the ones who sell the cars, interact
with customers and implement our strategy and we intend to invest more in our people than ever before. We are
reinvigorating our comprehensive training program by providing content that focuses not only on current job
responsibilities but also on what it means to be a part of the Sonic Automotive culture. We see many
opportunities ahead for Sonic Automotive and we have the strategy, the systems and the people to capitalize on
every one of them.

fsf O. Bruton Smith /s/ B. Scott Smith
O. Bruton Smith B. Scott Smith




Business Strategy

Sonic Automotive, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in 1997. We are one of the largest automotive
retailers in the United States. As of February 22, 2008, we operated 169 dealership franchises at 144 dealership
locations, representing 33 different brands of cars and light trucks, and 34 collision repair centers in 15 states.
Each of our dealerships provides comprehensive services including (1) sales of both new and used cars and light
trucks; (2) sales of replacement parts and performance of vehicle maintenance, warranty, paint and repair
services (collectively, “Fixed Operations™); and (3) arrangement of extended service contracts, financing and
insurance and other aftermarket products (collectively, “F&I™) for our automotive customers.

The following chart depicts the multiple sources of revenue and gross profit for the year ended
December 31, 2007:
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Our dealership network resides in various geographic markets. As of December 31, 2007, we operated
dealerships in the following markets:

Percent of
Number of Number of 2007 Total

Market Dealerships Franchises Revenue
HOUSION ..ot e e e ei e 15 18 17.0%
AlabamafTennessee . ............... ... i uun 16 20 10.5%
North/South Carolina/Georgia . .................. 18 21 10.2%
Florida . ...oviiinii it 14 18 7.9%
North Bay (San Francisco) .. ..........0 ... 11 12 7.8%
Dallas . ..ot e e 7 9 7.6%
South Bay (San Francisco) .. ................. .. 13 14 6.8%
Los AngelesSouth .......... .. ... ... .. 7 8 6.8%
Mid-Atlantic .. .. .. ov i s 6 7 5.3%
Los AngelesNorth . ................. ... ... 10 12 5.2%
Oklahoma ... ... i e e 7 7 4.5%
Michigan ........ ... ... 6 6 2.7%
Las Vegas . . ...ttt eiae i 4 4 2.2%
ORI .. e 6 9 1.9%
Colorado . ..o 2 2 1.9%
San Diego .. ..o 2 2 _L7%
Total .. .. ... e 144 169 100.0%




During 2007, we acquired or were awarded by manufacturers, ten franchises (at four dealership locations)
and disposed of 12 franchises (at eight dealership locations). We plan to continue to purchase franchises that
enrich our franchise portfolio and divest franchises which we believe will not yield acceptable returns over the
long-term.

The automotive retailing industry remains highly fragmented, and we believe that further consolidation is
likely. We believe that attractive acquisition opportunities continue to exist for dealership groups with the capital
and experience to identify, acquire and professionally manage dealerships.

Business Strategy

Further Develop Strategic Markets and Brands. Our growth strategy is focused on large metropolitan
markets, predominantly in the Southeast, Southwest, Midwest and California. We also seek to acquire stable
franchises that we believe have above average sales prospects. A majority of our dealerships are either luxury or
mid-line import brands. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 84.1% of our total revenue was generated by
import and luxury dealerships, which generally have higher operating margins, more stable fixed operations
departments, lower associate turnover and lower inventory levels. We expect this trend toward acquiring more
luxury and mid-line import dealerships to continue in the near future.

The following table depicts the breakdown of our new vehicle revenues by brand:

Percentage of New Vehicle

Revenue
Year Ended December 31,
M 2005 2006 2007
BMW e 145% 13.7% 16.2%
Honda ... .o i 153% 152% 14.0%
s30T N 114% 124% 12.5%
Mercedes . ... it e e 6.5% 95% 10.0%
General Motors (2) .. ..o e i e e e s 93% 85% 83%
Cadillac . .. .. e e e s 98% 92% 8.4%
Ford ... . e 80% T76% 69%
XIS . e 7.4% 68% 6.7%
VOIVO L 31%  25% 2.1%
Audi .. e 1.6% 1.4% 1.6%
NiSSaN .. i e e e 2.1% 1.8% 1.5%
Land Rover . ... i i e 0.8% 09% 1.5%
Hyundai .......... i e 1.4% 1.5% 1.4%
Volkswagen ........ .. 1.4% 1.5% 1.3%
Porsche . ... . . s 1.1% 1.3% 1.3%
ACUTA .. it e 1.6% 1.2% 1.2%
Infiniti .. ... . e e 0.7% 1.1% 1.2%
Chrysler (3) . ... ..o 0.6% 05% 05%
OtherLuxury (4) .. ... e 1.0% 1.2% 1.1%
Other (8) i e 24% 22% 2.1%
Total ... 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(I} In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, prior years’ income statement data reflect
reclassifications to exclude franchises sold, identified for sale, or terminated subsequent to December 31,
2006 which had not been previously included in discontinued operations. See Notes 1 and 2 to our
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements which discusses these and other factors that affect the
comparability of the information for the periods presented.
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(2) Includes Buick, Chevrolet, GMC, Pontiac and Saturn
(3) Includes Chrysler, Dodge and Jeep

(4) Includes Hummer, Jaguar, and Saab

(5) Includes Isuzu, KIA, Mini, Scion and Subaru

Increase Sales of Higher Margin Products and Services. We continue to pursue opportunities to increase
our sales of higher-margin products and services by expanding the following:

Finance, Insurance and Other Aftermarket Products (*F&I”): Each sale of a new or used vehicle
provides us with an opportunity to earn financing fees and insurance commissions and to sell extended
service contracts and other aftermarket products, We currently offer a wide range of nonrecourse financing, i
leasing, other aftermarket products, service contracts and insurance products to our customers. We are
continuing to emphasize menu-selling techniques and other best practices to increase our sales of F&I
products at both newly acquired and existing dealerships.

Parts, Service & Repair. Each of our dealerships offers a fully integrated service and parts
department. Manufacturers permit warranty work to be performed only at franchised dealerships. As a
result, franchised dealerships are uniquely qualified to perform work covered by manufacturer warranties on
increasingly complex vehicles. We believe we can continue to grow our profitable parts and service
business by using our access to capital to increase service capacity, investing in sophisticated equipment and
well trained technicians, using variable rate pricing structures, focusing on customer service and efficiently
managing our parts inventory. In addition, we believe our emphasis on selling extended service contracts
will drive further service and parts business in our dealerships as we increase the potential to retain current
customers beyond the term of the standard manufacturer warranty period.

Certified Pre-Owned Vehicles. Various manufacturers provide franchised dealers the opportunity to seil
certified pre-owned (“CPO™) vehicles. This certification process extends the standard manufacturer warranty on
the particular vehicle. We typically earn higher revenues and gross margins on CPO vehicles compared to
non-certified pre-owned vehicles. We also believe the extended manufacturer warranty increases our potential to
retain the pre-owned purchaser as a future parts and service customer. Since CPO warranty work can only be
performed at franchised dealerships, we believe the used vehicle business will become more clearly segmented
and CPQ saies and similar products will increase in volume.

“Value” Used Vehicles. Due to our luxury and import brand mix, our used vehicle strategy has
historically been focused on CPO vehicles and higher cost of sale vehicles. A market segment that drives used
vehicle volume that we historically participated in on only a limited basis is vehicles with retail prices below
$10,000. Until recent years, if we received a trade-in which did not meet our then existing internal criteria for
used vehicles (in many instances these would be “value” vehicles), we would wholesale the vehicle. We believe
the market for these “value” vehicles is deep and not as sensitive to market fluctuations as higher priced used
vehicles. We have begun to more aggressively market and retail these vehicles.

Emphasize Expense Control. 'We continually focus on controlling expenses and expanding margins at the
dealerships we acquire and integrate into our organization. We manage these costs, such as advertising and
variable compensation expenses, so that they are generally related to vehicle sales and can be adjusted in
response to changes in vehicle sales volume. The majority of our non-clerical dealership personnel are paid either
a commission or a modest salary plus commissions. In addition, dealership management compensation is tied to
individual dealership profitability. We believe we can further manage these types of costs through best practices,
standardization of compensation plans, controlled oversight and accountability, reducing associate turnover and
centralizing and standardizing processes and systems such as a single dealership management system, accounting
office consolidation, payroll system consolidation and inventory management technology.

Achieve High Levels of Customer Satisfaction. We focus on maintaining high levels of customer |
satisfaction. Our personalized sales process is designed 10 satisfy customers by providing high-quality vehicles in
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a positive, “consumer friendly” buying environment. Several manufacturers offer specific financial incentives on
a per vehicle basis if certain Customer Satisfaction Index (“CSI") levels (which vary by manufacturer) are
achieved by a dealership. In addition, all manufacturers consider CSI scores in approving acquisitions, In order to
keep management focused on customer satisfaction, we include CSI results as a component of our incentive-
based compensation programs.

Train and Develop Associates. We believe that our well-trained dealership personnel are key to our long-
term prospects, We require all of our employees, from service technicians to regional vice presidents, to
participate in our in-house training programs each year. We believe that our comprehensive training of all
employees and professional, multi-tiered management structure provide us with a competitive advantage over
other dealership groups. This training and organizational structure provide high-level supervision over the
dealerships, accurate financial reporting and the ability to maintain effective controls.

Manage Leverage. We believe it prudent over time to maintain our long-term-debt to total capital ratio at
between 35% and 40%. At December 31, 2007, our long-term debt to total capital ratio, net of cash and cash
equivalents, was 42.4%, exceeding our target primarily as a result of recent acquisitions, recent mortgage
financing and 2007 stock repurchases.

Company Information

Our website is located at www.sonicautomotive.com. Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as well as proxy statements and other
information we file with, or furnish to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) are available free of
charge on our website. We make these documents available as soon as reascnably practicable after we
electronically file them with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Except as otherwise stated in these documents, the
information contained on our website or available by hyperlink from our website is not incorporated into this
Annual Report or other documents we file with, or furnish to, the SEC.




Selected Financial Data

This selected conselidated financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

We have accounted for all of our dealership acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting and, as a
result, we do not include in our consolidated financial statements the results of operations of these dealerships
prior to the date we acquired them. Our selected consolidated financial data reflect the results of operations and
financial positions of each of our dealerships acquired prior to December 31, 2007. As a result of the effects of
our acquisitions and other potential factors in the future, the historical consolidated financial information
described in selected consolidated financial data is not necessarily indicative of the results of our operations and
financial position in the future or the results of operations and financial position that would have resulted had
such acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the periods presented in the selected consolidated financial data.

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Income Statement Data (1) (2):
Totalrevenues . ...........c..o..... $6,046,898 $6,540,693 $7.318,800 $7,985,079 $8,336,933
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes. ............. $ 125229 $ 144436 §$ 168,175 $ 162,322 $ 189213
Income from continuing operations. ... $ 82852 § 89699 $ 105713 $ 96,832 § 114,836
Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations. ............ $ 202 % 217 % 253 % 229 % 2.70
Diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations . ........... 3 194 % 208 §$ 242 % 2,18 § 2.54
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (2):
Total assets. . ....covvvveeeenaann. $2,685,113 $2,897,884 $3,025,501 $3,124.764 3,282,744
Total long-termdebt . .............. $ 696285 % 671,796 $ 715,058 $% 601,334 § 701,997
Total long-term liabilities (including
long-termdebt} ................. $ 791,239 § 799436 $ 876,956 § 791,938 § 929,99
Cash dividends declared per
commonshare. ................. $ 020 % 044 3 048 $ 048 $ 0.48

{1} In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, income statement data reflect
reclassifications from the prior years presentation to exclude franchises sold, identified for sale, or
terminated subsequent to December 31, 2006 which had not been previously included in discontinued
operations. See Note 2 to our accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, Business Acquisitions and
Dispositions, which discusses these and other factors that affect the comparability of the information for the
periods presented.

(2) As mentioned in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources and Note 2 to our accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements, business combinations and dispositions have had a material impact on our reported financial
information.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation

The foillowing discussion and analysis of the results of operations and financial condition should be read in
conjunction with the Sonic Automotive, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report. The financial and statistical data contained in the
following discussion for all periods presented reflects our December 31, 2007 classification of franchises
between continuing and discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144,

Overview

We are one of the largest automotive retailers in the United States. As of February 22, 2008, we operated
169 dealership franchises, representing 33 different brands of cars and light trucks, at 144 locations and 34
collision repair centers in 13 states. Our dealerships provide comprehensive services including sales of both new
and used cars and light trucks, sales of replacement parts, performance of vehicle maintenance, manufacturer
warranty repairs, paint and collision repair services, and arrangement of extended service contracts, financing,
insurance and other aftermarket products for our customers, Although vehicle sales are cyclical and are affected
by many factors, including general economic conditions, consumer confidence, levels of discretionary personal
income, interest rates and available credit, our parts, service and collision repair services are not closely tied to
vehicle sales and are not as dependent upon near-term sales volume. As a result, we believe the diversity of these
products and services reduces the risk of periodic economic downturns.

The automobile industry’s total amount of new vehicles sold decreased by 2.5% to 16.1 million vehicles in
2007 from 16.6 million vehicles in 2006. From an industry perspective, new vehicle unit sales on a year-over-
year basis grew 3.0% for import brands and contracted 7.1% for domestic brands. Many factors such as brand
and geographic concentrations have caused our past results to differ from the industry’s overall trend.

We sell similar products and services that exhibit similar economic characteristics, use similar processes in
selling our products and services and sell our products and services to similar classes of customers. As a result of
this and the way we manage our business, we have a single operating segment for purposes of reporting financial
condition and results of operations.

In the ordinary course of business, we evaluate our dealership franchises for possible disposition based on
various performance criteria. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we disposed of 12 franchises and had
approved, but not completed, the disposition of 20 additional franchises. These franchises have been identified as
held for sale because of unprofitable operations or other strategic considerations. We believe the disposition of
these franchises will altow us to focus our management attention on those remaining stores with the highest
potential return on investment.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could
differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting policies are those that are both most important to the portrayal of our financial position
and results of operations and require the most subjective and complex judgments. The following is a discussion
of what we believe are our critical accounting policies and estimates, See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion regarding our accounting policies.
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Finance, Insurance and Service Contracts

We arrange financing for customers through various financial institutions and receive a commission from
the lender either in a flat fee amount or in an amount equal to the difference between the actual interest rates
charged to customers and the preédetermined base rates set by the financing institution. We aiso receive
commissions from the sale of various insurance contracts and non-recourse third party extended service contracts
to customers. Under these contracts, the applicable manufacturer or third party warranty company is directly
liable for all warranties provided within the contract.

In the event a customer terminates a financing, insurance or extended service contract prior to the original
termination date, we may be required to return a portion of the commission revenue originally recorded to the
third party provider (“chargebacks™). The commission revenue for the sale of these products and services is
recorded net of estimated chargebacks at the time of sale. Our estimate of future chargebacks is established based
on our historical chargeback rates, termination provisions of the applicable contracts and industry data. While
chargeback rates vary depending on the type of contract sold, a 100 basis point change in the estimated
chargeback rates used in determining our estimates of future chargebacks would have changed our estimated
reserve for chargebacks at December 31, 2007 by approximately $3.5 million. Our estimate of chargebacks
($13.0 million as of December 31, 2007} is influenced by early contract termination events such as vehicle
repossessions, refinancings and early pay-off. If these factors change, the resulting impact is a change in our
estimate for chargebacks.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently when events or circumstances
indicate that impairment might have occurred. Based on criteria established by the applicable accounting
pronouncements, we have one reporting unit. There was $1,284.9 million of goodwill on our balance sheet,
including approximately $8.8 million classified in assets held for sale, at December 31, 2007.

In evaluating goodwill for impairment, if the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its carrying value,
we are then required to proceed to the second step of the impairment test. The second step involves allocating the
calculated fair value to all of the assets of the reporting unit as if the calculated fair value was the purchase price
in a business combination. This allocation would include assigning value to any previously unrecognized
identifiable assets (including franchise assets) which means the remaining fair value that would be allocated to
goodwill would be significantly reduced. See discussion regarding franchise agreements acquired prior to July 1,
2001 in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, We would then compare the fair value of the goodwill
resulting from this allocation process to the carrying value of the goodwill in the reporting unit with the
difference representing the amount of impairment.

In completing step one of the impairment analysis, we use various fair value approaches which consist of an
earnings multiple model and a discounted cash flow model. The results from each of these models are then
analyzed to determine if an indicator of impairment exists. The primary assumptions used in these various
models include historical pretax earnings, estimated average earnings multiples of public automotive retailers,
future growth assumptions, weighted average cost of capital along with working capital and capital expenditure
requirements, To the extent the reporting unit’s earnings decline significantly or there are changes in one or more
of these assumptions that would result in lower valuation results, it could cause the carrying value of the
reporting unit to exceed its fair value and thus require us to conduct the second step of the impairment test
described above.

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of our reporting unit exceeded the carrying value of the reporting unit
(step one of the above described impairment test). As a result, we were not required to conduct the second step of
the impairment test described above,




However, if in future periods we determine that the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its carrying
value, we believe that application of the second step of the impairment test would result in a substantial
impairment charge to goodwill and the amount of such impairment charge would likely be materially adverse to
our consolidated operating results and financial position for the period in which the charge would be recorded.

Insurance Reserves

We have various self-insured and high deductible insurance programs which require us to make estimates in
determining the ultimate liability we may incur for claims arising under these programs. We accrue for insurance
reserves on a pro-rata basis throughout the year based on the expected year-end liability. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions are made quarterly by our management based on available information and take into
consideration annual actuarial evaluations based on historical claims experience, claims processing procedures,
medical cost trends and, in certain cases, a discount factor. 1If our management receives information which causes
us to change our estimate of the year end liability, the amount of expense or expense reduction required to be
recorded in any particular quarter could be material to our operating results, financial position and cash flows.
We estimate the ultimate liability under these programs is between $19.5 million and $21.1 million. At
December 31, 2007, we had $21.3 million reserved for such programs. We used a discount rate of 4.0% to
calculate the present value of our estimated workers’ compensation claims, A discount rate of 4.0% was used to
calculate the present value of our general liability claim reserves, A 100 basis point change in the discount rate or
a 5 basis point change in the Selected Loss Cost Estimate would not have a significant impact on the reserve
baiance.

Lease Exit Accruals

The majority of our dealership properties are leased under long-term operating lease arrangements. When
leased properties are no longer utilized in operations, we record lease exit accruals. These situations could
include the relocation of an existing facility or the sale of a franchise where the buyer will not be subleasing the
property for either the remaining term of the lease or for an amount equal to our obligation under the lease. The
lease exit accruals represent the present value of the lease payments, net of estimated sublease rentals, for the
remaining life of the operating leases and other accruals necessary to satisfy lease commitments to the landlords.
At December 31, 2007, we had $8.2 million accrued for lease exit costs.

Legal Proceedings

We are involved, and expect to continue to be involved, in numerous legal proceedings arising out of the
conduct of our business, including litigation with customers, employment related lawsuits, contractual disputes
and actions brought by governmental authorities. As of December 31, 2007, we had accrued $1.9 million in legal
reserves included in other accrued liabilities. Currently, with the exception of the Galura litigation matter
discussed in “Item 3: Legal Proceedings” herein, no legal proceedings are pending against or invelve us that, in
the opinion of management, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. However, the results of legal proceedings cannot be predicted with
certainty, and an unfavorable resolution of one or more of these proceedings could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial conditien, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

Classification of Franchises in Continuing and Discontinued Operations

We classify the results from operations of our continuing and discontinued operations in our consolidated
statements of income based on the provisions of SFAS No. 144. Many of these provisions involve judgment in
determining whether a franchise will be reported as continuing or discontinued operations. Such judgments
include whether a franchise will be sold or terminated, the period required to complete the disposition and the
likelihood of changes to a plan for sale. If in future periods we determine that a franchise should be either
reclassified from continuing operations to discontinued operations or from discontinued operations to continuing
operations, previously reported consclidated statements of income may be reclassified in order to reflect that
classitication.
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Income Taxes

As a matter of course, we are regularly audited by various taxing authorities and from time to time, these
audits result in proposed assessments where the ultimate resolution may result in us owing additional taxes. We
believe that our tax positions comply, in all material respects, with applicable tax law and that we have
adequately provided for any reasonably foreseeable outcome related to these matters. Included in other accrued
labilities at December 31, 2007 is $24.6 million in reserves that we have provided for these matters (including
estimates related to possible interest and penalties) in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” We evaluate our tax
positions using the recognition threshold and measurement attribute in accordance with FIN 48. From time to
lime, we engage in transactions in which the tax consequences may be subject to uncertainty. Examples of such
transacticns include business acquisitions and disposals, including consideration paid or received in connection
with such transactions. Significant judgment is required in assessing and estimating the tax consequences of these
transactions. We determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position will be sustained upon
examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of
the position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, we
presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all
relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to
determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

We adjust our estimates periodically because of ongoing examinations by and settlements with the various
taxing authorities, as well as changes in tax laws, regulations and precedent. The effects on our financial
statements of income tax uncertainties are discussed in Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements. We
believe that adequate accruals have been made for income taxes.

We have $9.8 million in deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss carryforwards that will expire
between 2014 and 2027. Management reviews these carryforward positions, the time remaining untii expiration
and other opportunities to utilize these carryforwards in making an assessment as to whether it is more likely than
not that these carryforwards will be utilized. We have recorded a valuation allowance of $1.3 miilion in 2007
based on our judgment that certain state carryforwards will not be utilized. We have not recorded a valuation
allowance related to our remaining carryforwards because we have concluded it is more likely than not that we
will realize the benefits of the associated deferred tax assets. However, the results of future operations, regulatory
framework of these taxing authorities and other related matters cannot be predicted with certainty, Therefore,
actual utilization of the losses which created these deferred tax assets which differs from the assumptions used in
the development of our judgment could result in a charge that would be materially adverse to our consolidated
operating results. financial position and cash flows.

We accrue for income taxes on a pro-rata basis throughout the year based on the expected year end liability.
These estimates, judgments and assumptions are made quarterly by our management based on available
information and take into consideration estimated income taxes based on prior year income tax returns, changes
in income tax law, our income tax strategies and other factors. If our management receives information which
causes us to change our estimate of the year end liability, the amount of expense or expense reduction required to
be recorded in any particular quarter could be material to our operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value
measures required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance as to whether
or not an instrument is carried at fair value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. We are currently reviewing the provisions of SFAS No. 157 to determine the impact on our
consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS™) No. 159, “The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently reviewing the provisions of SFAS
No. 159 to determine the impact on our consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations” {SFAS 141(R})). SFAS
No. 141(R) provides guidance regarding the allocation of purchase price in business combinations, measurement
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as well as other intangible assets acquired. Also in December 2007, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements” (SFAS 160).
SFAS 160 provides accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary if certain conditions exist. SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 160 are effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited. We are currently reviewing the
provisions of SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 160 and have not yet determined the impact of these statements on our
consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations

On July 19, 2006, we issued a press release describing charges recorded during the second quarter of 2006
in connection with the decision to exit certain facility leases and cancel various facility improvement projects,
asset impairments and other asset write-offs, finance chargeback reserves, litigation matters and an adjustment of
certain tax strategies. These charges are discussed in more detail in the respective areas under this heading
“Results of Operations” when discussing results for the year ended December 31, 2006. The amount and location
of the charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2006 are
presented in the following table:

Continuing Operations

Loss from
Finance, Selling, Provision operations
insurance  Cost general and Depreciation for and sale of
and other of administrative and income  discontinued
revenue sales expenses amortization taxes franchises Total
Real estate and other asset
impairments/write-offs and
lease exitcosts . . ............ $04 503 $10.1 $52.1 $— $58 5187
Finance chargeback reserves . . ... 6.2 — — — — — 6.2
Legalaccruals ................ — — [.2 — - 0.5 1.7
Effective income tax rate
adjustment ................. — — — — 1.0 — 1.0
$6.6 $03 $11.3 §21 $1.0 $6.3 $27.6




The following table summarizes the percentages of total revenues represented by certain items reflected in

our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Percentage of Total Revenue

{1) for the Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2006 2007

Revenues:

New vehicles . ... ... e e 614% 613% 60.7%

Usedvehicles. . ... i e 15.5% 16.1% 17.4%

Wholesale vehicles .. . ... .. . e 6.9% 6.2% 5.1%

Parts, service and collisionrepair. . ........... . coii i i 13.8% 14.0% 14.3%

Finance, insurance and other. . ... ... ... ... .. 24% 2.4% 2.5%
TOll TEVENUE . .. .. e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costof sales (2) ... i 847% 84.6% 84.3%
Gross PIOfI . . . oo e 153% 154% 155%
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ........... .. it ian.. 11.7% 11.8% 11.5%
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... .. L e 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
Operating iNCOIMIE . . . ...\ttt et et e e iaeens 33% 33% 3.7%
Interest expense, floorplan . ... ... . . 0.4% 0.8% 0.8%
Interest expense, other, net . .. .. .. . e 0.6% 0.5% 0.5%
Other eXpense, Ml .. ... .. o e e 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ...................... 23% 2.0% 23%
Income tax eXpense .. ... ... e 0.9% 0.8% 1.0%
Income from continuing Operations .. ....... ... cuiuintninnrnnnnniaaeann. 1.4% 1.2% 1.4%

(1) In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, prior years' income statement data reflects
reclassifications to exclude additional franchises sold, identified for sale or terminated subsequent to
December 31, 2006 which had not been previously included in discontinued operations. See Note 2 to our
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, Business Acquisitions and Dispositions, which discusses
these and other factors that affect the comparability of the information for the periods presented.

(2) The cost of sales line item includes the cost of new and used vehicles, vehicle parts and all costs directly

linked to servicing customer vehicles.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we disposed of 12 franchises, and had approved, but not

completed, the disposition of 20 additional franchises. The results of operations of these dealerships, including
gains or losses on disposition, have been included in discontinued operations on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Income for all periods presented. In addition to these dispositions, during the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, we disposed of 22 and 12 franchises, respectively.

Annual “same store” results of operations represent the aggregate of the same store results for each of the
four quarters in that year. Same store results for each quarter include dealerships that were owned and operated
tor the entire quarter in both periods and were classified as continuing operations under SFAS No, 144 at
December 31, 2007. Unless otherwise noted, our discussion of the Results of Operations from “New Vehicles” to
“Gross Profit and Gross Margins” is on a same store basis.

New Vehicles

New vehicle revenues include the sale and lease of new vehicles, as well as the sale of fleet vehicles. New
vehicle revenues are highly dependent on manufacturer incentives, which vary from cash-back incentives to low
interest rate financing. New vehicle revenues are also dependent on manufacturers to provide adequate vehicle
allocations to meet customer demands.




The automobile manufacturing industry is cyclical and historically has experienced periodic downturns
characterized by oversupply and weak demand. As an automotive retailer, we seek to mitigate the effects of this
cyclicality by maintaining a diverse mix of branded dealerships. Our brand diversity allows us to offer a broad
range of products at a wide range of prices from lower priced, or economy vehicles, to luxury vehicles. We
believe that this diversity reduces the risk of changes in customer preferences, product supply shortages and
aging products. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 84.1% of our total new vehicle revenue was generated by
import and luxury dealerships compared to 83.4% for 2006, We expect this trend toward more import and
domestic luxury dealerships to continue. We believe demographic and other trends favor import and luxury
brands and expect our acquisition activity in the future to concentrate primarily, but not completely, on these
brands.

For the Year Ended Units or § % For the Year Ended Units or § %
123172006  12/31/2007  Change Change 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 Change  Change

Total New Vehicle Units

SameStore ................ 154,750 149,929 (4.821) 3.1%) 146,113 149.070 2,957 2.0%
Acquisitions and Other . ... ... 805 4,675 3870 480.7% 486 6,485 5.999 1234.4%
Total as Reported . ... ... .. 155,555 154,604 951 {0.6%) 146,599 155.555 8.956 6.1%

Total New Vehicle Revenues
(in thousands)

Same Store ................ $4874962 $4842793  5(32.169) (0.7%) 34.466,497 $4.637.598 317111 18%
Acquisitions and Other .. .. ... 23,545 213,687 190,142 807.6% 24,340 260,909 236,569 9N.9%
Total as Reported .. .. ..... $4,898,507 $5.056,480 $157.973 3.2% $4,4590,837 $4,898,507  $407.670 9.1%
Total New Vehicle Unit Price
Same Store ................ $ 315502 % 32301 § 799 25% $ 30569 % 31110 0§ 541 1.8%
Total Dealerships as Reported . $ 31491 $ 32706 § 1215 39% $ 30633 0§ 31491 % 858 2.8%

Same store new vehicle revenue and unit sales were negatively impacted by economic sofiness in our
California and Florida markets, where we have a significant number of luxury and import dealerships. These
conditions directly affected the performance of our import stores which underperformed the industry unit volume
increase of 3.0%, while our domestic stores outperformed the industry decrease of 7.1%. Our import dealerships
experienced a decrease of 2,216 units, or 2.0%, while our domestic dealerships experienced a decrease of 2,605
units, or 5.8%. These overall import and domestic same store new vehicle unit decreases can also be attributed to
a decline in new truck and SUV units from 2006 to 2007 of 2,815 units, or 4.2%. Declining truck and SUV sales
resulted from increasing gasoline prices, a downturn in the housing market and other economic uncertainties. OQur
BMW stores realized an increase in unit volume for 2007 of 891 units, or 5.6%. Additionally, our BMW
dealerships posted the largest increase in new SUV unit sales when compared to 2006. Qur Mercedes dealerships
experienced the most significant decline in sales volume among our import stores, decreasing by 360 units, or
4.4%, as compared to 2006. Our GM (excluding Cadillac) dealerships experienced a decline in new retail unit
volume, but strong fleet sales led to an overall improvement in total new unit sales volume. Both our Cadillac
and Ford stores posted decreases in same store new vehicle unit sales decreasing by 1,115 units, or 11.1% and
1,500 units, or 8.8%, respectively.

The increase in our average price per unit in 2007 can be attributed mainly to a larger percentage of our
sales being generated by higher priced luxury vehicles. Many of our import dealerships experienced average
price per unit increases, most notably, Toyota and BMW (up 3.6% and 3.2%, respectively). All of our domestic
dealerships experienced average price per unit increases. Our Ford dealerships experienced the most significant
improvement in sales price per unit of our domestic stores, increasing by $723, or 2.9%, during 2007.

During 2006, our increase in same store new vehicle unit sales was driven entirely by our import
dealerships, which experienced an increase of 2,989 units, or 2.9%, while our domestic dealerships experienced a
decrease of 32 units, or 0.1%, as compared to 2005. This is compared to an industry increase in unit sales at
import dealerships of 4.8%, and a decrease in the industry domestic unit sales of 8.1%. Qur top performing
import brands for 2006 were Toyota and Mercedes, which posted increases of 3,654 units, or 16.7%, and 435
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units, or 8.8%, respectively. These increases can be attributed to the introduction of new models, in addition to
new body styling and design on existing models. Additionally, our BMW stores posted a 2.3% revenue increase
despite a slight decline in unit volume. Qur Honda dealerships experienced the most significant decline in sales
volume among our import stores, decreasing by 648 units, or 2.1%, as compared to 2005. Our top performing
domestic brand was Ford, which posted an increase of 325 units, or 1.9%. Our GM (excluding Cadillac)
dealerships experienced a decline in new retail unit volume of 960 units, or 7.2%, but strong fleet sales with an
increase of 709 units, or 15.8%, helped to offset that decline. Additionally, our Cadillac stores posted an
improvement in fleet sales of 108 units, or 27.2%, which offset the domestic decline in new unit volume. Many
of our import dealerships experienced average price per unit increases, most notably being Mercedes, BMW and
Honda (up 5.5%, 3.1% and 2.5%, respectively). On the domestic side, our Ford and Cadillac dealerships
experienced the most significant increases in average sales price per unit (up 3.5% and 2.9%, respectively). The
increases at these dealerships can be attributed to both the various pricing strategies put in place by Ford and GM
during 2005, which lowered 2005 pricing, and a shift from car sales 1o truck and SUV sales during 2006.

Used Vehicles

Used vehicle revenues are directly affected by the level of manufacturer incentives on new vehicles, the
number and quality of trade-ins and lease turn-ins and the availability of consumer credit. In addition, various
manufacturers provide franchised dealers the opportunity to “certify” pre-owned vehicles based on critena
established by the manufacturer, This certification process extends the standard manufacturer warranty. On a
continuing operations basis, our sales of CPO vehicles increased slightly in 2007 to 34.7% of total used vehicle
units from 34.6% in 2006. Our sales of non-CPO used vehicles experienced an increase of 3,454 units or 7.9%
during 2007. These increases were partially due to an increased focus on used cars, the continued implementation
of a standardized merchandising process that includes the retailing of “value” used vehicles, along with an
improved inventory management system at a number of our stores. Additionally, industry pricing improvements
affected the value of used vehicles, as the Manheim Used Vehicle Value Index increased 0.4% from December
2006 to December 2007.

For the Year Ended Units or $ % For the Year Ended Units or § %
12/31/2006 12/31/2007 Change  Change 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 Change Change

Total Used Vehicle Units

Same Store ................ 66,438 70,363 3,925 5.9% 61,233 64,271 3,038 5.0%
Acquisitions and Other .. ... .. 289 1,780 1,491 515.9% 120 2,456 2336 1946.7%
Total as Reported ......... 66,727 72,143 5416 8.1% 61,353 66,727 5.374 8.83%

Total Used Vehicle Revenues
{in thousands}

Same Store ................ $1,276.531 $1.401,589  $125,058 9.8% $1,131.805 $1,221.411 $ 89,606 71.9%
Acquisitions and Other . ...... 5,356 479438 42,592 795.2% 4,068 60.476 56408  1336.6%
Total as Reported ......... $1281.887 51449537 §167.650 13.1% $1,135873 $1,281,887 $146,014 12.9%
Total Used Vehicle Unit Price
SameStore ....... ... 0. $ 19214 § 19919 § 705 317% 3% 18484 § 19004 § 520 2.8%
Total Dealerships as
Reported ................ $ 19211 § 20093 § 882 46% % 18514 & 19211 § 697 3.8%

In 2007, the overall increase in average used price per unit of 3.7% when compared to 2006 can be mainly
attributed to a continuing shift in our dealership mix towards more import and luxury dealerships (which tend to
retail higher priced used vehicles). Our import dealerships posted an increase in used unit volume of 4,100, or
9.3%. Our BMW and Mercedes stores posted the most significant increases in used unit volume, 24.1% and
14.2%, respectively. Our Cadillac stores posted the only increase in used unit volume among our domestic
brands. Qur Ford and GM (excluding Cadillac) stores posted small declines in used unit volume of 1.9% and
1.8%, respectively.




During 2006, our import dealerships contributed to the overall improvement in used unit volume by posting
an increase of 2,601 units, or 6.6%, when compared to 2005. Of our import stores, BMW, Mercedes and Toyota
posted the most significant increases in used unit volume. Our domestic dealerships also posted an improvement
in used unit sales volume, increasing by 437 units, or 2.0%. Cadillac was the largest contributor to the domestic
increase in unit volume. )

Wholesale Vehicles

Wholesale vehicle revenues are highly correlated with new and used vehicle retail sales and the associated
trade-in volume. Wholesale revenues are also significantly affected by our corporate inventory management
policies, which are designed to optimize our total used vehicle inventory.

For the Year Ended Units or $ % For the Year Ended Units or § %
123172006  12/3172007 Change Change 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 Change  Change

Total Wholesale Vehicle Units

Same Store ............... 51,114 44,731 (6,383) (12.5%) 53.139 49,546 (3,593) (6.8%)
Acquisitions and Other . ... .. 2,644 2814 170 6.4% 2,969 4,212 1,243 41.9%
Total as Reported ........ 53.758 47,545 (6,213} (11.6%) 56,108 53,758 (2,350) (4.2%)

Total Wholesale Vehicle
Revenues {in thousands)

Same Store .. ... ... ... .. $460,583 $391.876 $(68,707) (14.9%) $469,574 $441,119 $(28,455) (6.1%)
Acquisitions and Other ... ... 35948 36,253 305 0.8% 33,947 55412 21,465 63.2%
Total as Reported ........ $496,531 $428.129 $(68,402) (13.8%) $503.521 $496.531 $ (6,990 (1.4%)
Total Wholesale Unit Price
Same Store .. ...l $ 901 $ 8,761 $ (2500 (28%) $ 8837 $ 8903 $ 66 0.7%
Total Dealerships as
Reported ............... $ 9236 $ 9.005 $ (23D (25%) $ 8974 $ 9236 $ 262 2.9%

Lower wholesale vehicle revenues realized during 2007 were driven by a decline in wholesale unit sales
coupled with a decrease in average wholesale price per unit. The decrease in unit volume can be primarily
attributed 1o our increased focus on retail used vehicles (see “Used Vehicles” above). The wholesale price per
unit decrease can also be attributed to the merchandising process. This process allowed us to retail vehicles that
historically would have had a positive effect on our wholesale per unit price.

During 2006, the decline in wholesale unit volume can be mainly attributed to the beginning of the
implementation of our merchandising and inventory management process related to used vehicles. We believe
this improved process allowed us to retail used vehicles we historically would have disposed of through the
wholesale market.

Parts, Service and Collision Repair (“Fixed Operations”)

Same store revenue from these items was as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the Year Ended o For the Year Ended $ %
12/31/2006  12/31/2007 Change Change 123172005 12/31/2006 Change Change
Parts . ... $ 594,892 % 606968 $12.076 20% § 546359 § 557099 510,740 2.0%
Service ... i e 454,134 472,851 18,717 4.1% § 397928 § 423500 25,572 6.4%
Collision repait ............ovant. 60,482 63.202 2,720 45% % 57518 § 57651 133 0.2%
Same Store .. ...l $1,109,508  $1,143,021 $33.513 30% $1,001.805 $1,038250 $36.445 3.6%

Parts and service revenue consists of customer requested repairs (“customer pay’), warranty repairs, retail
parts, wholesale parts and collision repairs. Parts and service revenue is driven by the mix of warranty repairs
versus customer pay repairs, available service capacity, vehicle quality, customer loyalty and manufacturer
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warranty programs. During 2007, 18.1% of our service and parts revenue was generated by warranty repairs and
46.0% by customer pay repairs compared to 19.4% by warranty repairs and 44.6% by customer pay repairs in
2006,

We believe that over time, vehicle quality will improve, but vehicle complexity will offset any revenue lost
from improvement in vehicle quality. We also believe that we have the ability, through our access 10 capital, to
continue 1o add service capacity and increase revenues. During 2007, we added 46 service stalls, or 1.3%, to our
overall stall capacity. In addition, manufacturers continue to extend new vehicle warranty periods and have also
begun to include regular maintenance items in the warranty coverage. These factors, combined with the extended
manufacturer warranties on CPO vehicles (see the discussion in “Business—Business Strategy—Certified
Pre-Owned Vehicles” above}, should facilitate continued growth in our service and parts business.

Parts revenue is driven by the mix of warranty repairs versus customer pay repairs as prices for warranty
parts are established by the manufacturer. We believe that long-term trends in retail parts sales will be affected
by the same trends as discussed above for service (additional capacity, customer satisfaction, etc.),

As of December 31, 2007, we operated 34 collision repair centers. Collision revenues are heavily impacted
by trends in the automotive insurance industry. The 4.5% increase in collision repair revenues during 2007 versus
2006 was driven by an increase in repair order volume. Collision repair revenues remained flat during 2006, as
compared to 2005,

For the Year Ended o For the Year Ended $ %
12312006 123172007 Change Change 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 Change Change

Total Parts, Service and Collision
Repair (in thousands)

Same Store .. ..o $1,109,508 $1,143,021 $33.513 Jo0% $1.001.805 $1.038250 3§ 36445 1.6%
Acquisitions and Other ......... 8.858 48,326 39468  445.6% 6.701 80,116 73415 1095.6%
Total as Reported .. .......... $1.118366  $1,191.347 $72,981 6.5% 31008506 31.118,366 $109.860 10.9%

Same store fixed operations revenues increased during 2007 compared to 2006, primarily due to the
performance of our import dealerships (up $34.8 million, or 4.3%) outpacing decreases in our domestic
dealerships (down $3.2 million, or 1.1%). Excluding the effect of one additional selling day in 2007 versus 2006,
our same store fixed operations revenues increased $29.0 million, or 2.6%. Our BMW dealerships experienced
significant increases in fixed operations revenues, increasing by $26.4 million, or 12.9%, compared to 2006 as a
resuit of BMW's vehicle maintenance programs and strong same store new vehicle sales. Customer pay sales at
our import dealerships increased $30.1 million, or 8.7%. The customer pay import increases were partially offset
by decreases in warranty sales of $7.9 million, or 4.6%. Qur Mercedes dealerships experienced significant
decreases in warranty sales, $9.0, or 23.3%, related to a change in their warranty program and a large number of
recalls in the prior year. Our Cadillac dealerships experienced significant decreases in fixed operations revenues,
decreasing by $3.8 million, or 3.0%, compared to 2006. Customer pay sales at our domestic dealerships
decreased $1.1 million, or 0.8%, driven by a decrease in our Cadillac stores of $2.0 million, or 3.0%, as
compared to 2006.

Same store fixed operations revenues increased during 2006 compared to 2005, primarily due to the
performance of our import dealerships (up $55.7 million, or 8.2%) outpacing decreases in our domestic
dealerships (down $20.3 million, or 6.5%). Customer pay sales at our import dealerships increased $42.1 million,
or 13.8%. Our BMW dealerships experienced significant increases in fixed operations revenues, increasing by
$22.3 million, or 12.3%, compared to 2005 as a result of BMW’s vehicle maintenance programs and strong same
store new vehicle sales. These import increases were partially offset by decreases of $20.3 million, or 6.5%, at
our domestic dealerships. Warranty sales declines of $7.0 million, or 14.09%, were offset by an increase in
customer pay of 3$0.9 million, or 0.6%, at our domestic stores. Qur GM and Cadillac dealerships, which
decreased $16.9 million, or 13.6%, and $4.9 million, or 3.9%, respectively, as compared to 2005 contributed to
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lower domestic sales. The declines in our GM dealerships were primarily caused by a decrease in warranty repair
services and wholesale parts sales of $23.7 million, or 27.7%. Warranty sales at our Cadillac stores experienced
declines of $3.6 million, or 14.2%, as compared to 2005,

Finance, Insurance and Other

Finance, insurance and other revenues include commissions for arranging vehicle financing and insurance,
sales of third-party extended service contracts for vehicles and other aftermarket products. In connection with
vehicle financing, service contracts, other aftermarket products and insurance contracts, we receive commissions
from the providers for originating contracts.

Rate spread is another term for the commission earned by our dealerships for arranging vehicle financing for
consumers. The amount of the commission could be zero, a flat fee or an actual spread between the interest rate
charged to the consumer and the interest rate provided by the direct financing source (bank, credit union or
manufacturers’ captive finance company). We have established caps on the potential rate spread our dealerships
can earn with all finance sources. We believe the rate spread we earn for arranging financing represents value to
the consumer in numerous ways, including the following:

+  Lower cost, below-market financing is often available only from the manufacturers’ captives and
franchised dealers;

= Lease-financing alternatives are largely available only from manufacturers’ captives or other indirect
lenders;

»  Customers with substandard credit frequently do not have direct access to potential sources of
sub-prime financing; and

*  Customers with significant “negative equity” in their current vehicle (i.e., the customer’s current
vehicle is worth less than the balance of their vehicle loan or lease obligation) frequently are unable to
pay off the loan on their current vehicle and finance the purchase or lease of a replacement new or used
vehicle without the assistance of a franchised dealer.

Finance, insurance and other revenues are driven by the level of new and used vehicle unit sales,
manufacturer financing or leasing incentives and our F&I penetration rate. The F&I penetration rate represents
the percentage of vehicle sales on which we are able 10 originate financing or sell extended service contracts,
other aftermarket products or insurance contracts, Qur finance penetration rate remained relatively flat at 67.4%
in 2007. Our extended service contract penetration rate decreased to 33.0% in 2007 from 34.0% in 2006. We
expect our F&I penetration rate to increase over time as we continue to emphasize the use of menu selling
techniques.

For the Year Ended % For the Year Ended 7
12312006 1273172007 Change Change 123172005 12/31/2006 Change Change

Total Finance, Insurance and Other
Revenue (in thousands)

Same Swore . ... $186.411 $203,327 316916 9.1% 3175175 $179,807 $4,632 2.6%
Acquisitions and Other .......... 3,377 8.113 4,736 140.2% 4,888 9,981 5,093 104.2%
Total as Reported .. ........... $189,788 $211.440  $21.652 114%  $180.063 $189,788 $9.725 5.4%
Total F&I per Unit (excluding fleet)
SameStore .. ..o $ 907 $ 995 § 88 97% § 907 $ 99 5 2 0.2%
Total Dealerships as Reported . . . . . $ 918 $ 1004 5 86 94% $ 929 $ 918 3 (1.2%)

Same store finance, insurance and other revenues increased during 2007 when compared to 2006 despite
static retail vehicle unit sales volume. The increase is primarily due to higher F&I penetration rates. Qur import
dealerships reported an increase of revenues of $14.0 million, or 10.6%, primarily due to revenue increases in our
BMW, Toyota, and Mercedes dealerships of $6.2 million, or 28.3%, $2.3 million, or 8.3%, and $1.3 million, or
10.4%, respectively. Qur domestic stores also experienced increases in revenues of $2.9 million, or 5.4%. The
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increase was led by our General Motors stores of $2.0 million, or 7.8%. Included in finance, insurance and other
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 is a $6.2 million charge related to an increase in our allowance for
estimated finance chargebacks. Excluding the effect of this charge, finance, insurance, and other revenue in the
year ended December 31, 2007 would have increased 7.9%,

Same store finance, insurance, and other revenues increased slightly in 2006 compared to 2005 due to a
2.4% increase retail unit sales volume. The increase in revenues was primarily attributed to our import stores
with an increase of $4.1 million, or 3.4% over 2005. Qur Toyota and Mercedes dealerships led the improvement
in revenues with increases of $3.0 million, or 12.4%, and $1.0 million, or 14.6%, respectively. Our domestic
stores also experienced a slight increase in revenues of $0.5 million, or 0.9%. The increase was led by our
General Motors stores of $0.3 million, or 1.3%. The domestic increase was partially offset by our Ford stores,
which experienced decreases of $0.1 million, or 0.4%. Excluding the effect of the $6.2 million charge related to
an increase in our allowance for estimated finance chargebacks charge for the year ended December 31, 2006,
finance, insurance, and other revenue in the year ended December 31, 2006 would have increased 8.8%.

Gross Profit and Gross Margins

Our overall gross profit and gross margin {gross profit as a percentage of revenues) generally vary
depending on changes in our revenue mix. Although sales of new vehicles comprise the majority of our total
revenues, new vehicles generally carry the lowest margin rate of any product or service we offer. As a result,
sales of new vehicles comprise a relatively small portion of total gross profits. Retail sales of used vehicles
generally carry a slightly higher gross margin rate than new vehicles. Parts, service and collision repair carry a
much higher gross margin rate than vehicle sales. Brand mix also has an impact on the gross margins that we
realize. Historically, our import and luxury brands generally provide higher margins than our domestic brands.
As we continue to acquire more import and luxury dealerships, we would expect our gross margins to increase.
Our same store revenue mix is shown in the following table:

Basis A Basis
For the Year Ended Point For the Year Ended Point

123172006 12312007 Change 12/31/2005 12/3172006 Change

Revenues as a Percentage of Total Revenues

NewVehicles ... i e 61.6% 60.7% {90) 61.7% 61.7% 0

UsedVehicles ............. .. ... ... ... .. ... 16.1% 17.6% 150 15.6% 16.2% 60

Wholesale Vehicles ......... ... ... ... .o . 5.8% 4,9% {90) 6.5% 5.9% (60)

Fixed Operations ............ ... .. ...oiiiiin.in. 14.1% 14.3% 20 13.8% 13.8% 0

Finance. Insurance and Other ...................0.Ws 2.4% 2.5% 10 2.4% 24% 0
Same Store .. ... e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

For the Year Ended % For the Year Ended $ o
12/31/2006  12/31/2007 Change Change 12/31/2005 12/31/2006  Change Change

Total Gross Profit (in thousands)

SameStore ...l $1.217.803  $1.238811  $21,008 1.7% $1,106906 $1,154.886 & 47,980 4.3%
Acquisitions and Other .. ...._.. 10,488 52,774 42286 403.2% 10,265 73405 63,140  615.1%
Total as Reported ............ $1.228,291  $1.291,585 $63.294 52% S$1.117.171  $1,228,291 $111.120 9.9%

The overall gross margin rates on our various revenue lines on a same store basis were as follows:

For the Year Ended II;];S:: For the Year Ended gﬁf,'.ﬁ
12/3172006  12/31/2007 Change 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 Change

New vehicles ... e 7.3% 6.9% (40) 7.4% 7.4% V]
Used vehicles . ...t 9.7% 9.1% (60) 10.1% 9.3% (30)
Wholesale vehicles .. ...... ... ... . ... ... .. ... ..., (1.19%) (1.2%) (10) {0.5%) {1.1%) (60}
Parts, service and collision repair .. .................. .. 501% 50.5% 40 49.0% 50.0% 100
Finance and insurance . ...... . ... .. ... .. ... . eiuia., 100.0% 100.0% 0 100.0% 100.0% 0
Overall grossmargin .............. .. .o 15.4% 15.5% 10 15.3% 15.4% 10
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The 40 basis point decrease in the new vehicle gross margin can be attributed to weakening economic and
market conditions. The 60 basis points decrease in used vehicle gross margin in 2007 is also the result of soft
market conditions and the result of the continuing shift in our dealership mix towards more luxury and import
dealerships (which tend to have lower gross margin rates for used vehicles than domestic brands). Our luxury
dealerships posted the largest increase in fixed operations gross margin percentages, increasing by 50 basis points
in 2007. This increase is primarily the result of a shift toward a higher proportion of sales resulting from
customer pay transactions and away from warranty transactions,

Our same store gross margin percentage was relatively flat in 2006, when compared to 2005. Gross margin
improvements experienced in fixed operations were offset by declines in both the used and wholesale vehicle
gross margin percentages. Our Toyota dealerships posted the most significant increase in fixed operations gross
margin percentage among our import dealerships, improving by 130 basis points. In addition, the majority of our
domestic dealerships contributed to the fixed operations increase. Specifically, our GM (excluding Cadillac),
Ford and Cadillac dealerships experienced fixed operations margin increases of 460 basis points, 40 basis points
and 40 basis points, respectively, when compared to 2005.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative {“SG&A”) expenses are comprised of four major groups: compensation
expense, advertising expense, rent and rent rélated expense, and other expense. Compensation expense primarily
relates to dealership personnel who are paid a commission or a modest salary plus commission (which typically
vary depending on gross profits realized) and support personnel who are paid a fixed salary. Due to the salary
component for certain dealership and corporate personnel, gross profits and compensation expense are not 100%
correlated. Advertising expense and other expenses vary based on the level of actual or anticipated business
activity and number of dealerships owned. Rent and rent related expense typically varies with the number of
dealerships owned, investments made for facility improvements and interest rates. Although not completely
correlated, we believe the best way to measure SG&A expenses is as a percentage of gross profit.

2007 Compared to 2006

Total SG&A expenses increased $24.8 million, or 2.6%, in 2007 compared to 2006. As a percentage of
gross profit, reported SG&A expenses decreased by 190 basis points, from 76.8% in 2006 to 74.9% in 2007.
Totat SG&A expenses in 2006 include charges totaling $11.4 million and primarity retate to asset impairments,
lease exit charges and legal charges. Absent these charges, and others that affected 2006 gross profit in the
amount of $6.9 million, SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit in 2006 would have been 75.4% for the
year ended December 31, 2006. The 50 basis point decrease in the 2007 ratio compared to the adjusted 2006 ratio
is primarily attributed to higher gross profit dollars in 2007 and reductions in employee compensation costs
slightly offset by higher rent expenses.

In 2007, tota! reported compensation expense increased by $5.4 million, or 1.0%, when compared to 2006.
As a percentage of gross profit, total compensation expense improved by 180 basis points to 42.2% in 2007 from
44.0% in 2006. The favorable decrease as a percentage of gross profit was partially the result of revenue and
gross profit mix shifting more toward fixed operations where the percentage of compensation refated to gross
profit is typically lower than other revenue categories. Absent the 2006 charges discussed above, compensation
expense as a percentage of gross profit would have been 43.7% in 2006.

Advertising expense increased $4.4 million, or 6.9%, in 2007, as compared to 2006. As a percentage of
gross profit, advertising expense increased by 10 basis points to 5.3% in 2007 from 5.2% in 2006. Advertising
costs are unfavorable versus prior year due to lower rebates and credits received and higher internet advertising
expenses. Absent the 2006 charges discussed above, advertising expense as a percentage of gross profit would
have been 5.1% in 2006,
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Rent and rent related expenses increased $8.8 million, or 6.2%, in 2007, compared to 2006. Acquisitions
contributed $4.4 million of the overall increase. As a percentage of gross profit, rent and rent related expenses
increased by 20 basis points to 11.8% in 2007 from 11.6% in 2006. In 2006, we recorded a charge of $2.0 million
related to lease exit expenses. Absent this charge, and others that affected gross profit in the second quarter of
2006 in the amount of $6.9 million, rent and rent related expenses as a percentage of gross profit would have
been 11.4% in 2006. Overall 2007 rent and rent related expense increased 40 basis points compared to the
adjusted 2006 ratio due to rent increases, acquisitions, facilities improvements and higher maintenance costs.

Other SG&A expenses increased $6.2 million, or 3.1%, in 2007, as compared to 2006, due to increases in
service loaner, credit card fees, delivery costs and bad debt expense. Absent the 2006 charges described above,
other SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit in 2006 would have increased 60 basis points in 2007, from
15.1% in 2006 to 15.7% in 2007.

2006 Compuared to 2005

In 2006, total SG&A expenses increased $90.2 million, or 10.6%, compared to 2005. As a percentage of
gross profit, reported 2006 SG&A expense increased by 50 basis points, from 76.3% in 2005 10 76.8% in 2006.
These increases, both the dollar increase and the increase as a percentage of gross profits, can be attributed to
current year acquisitions, charges recorded during 2006 discussed above, and the effect of a $3.0 million
favorable legal settlement in 2005. Acquisitions in 2006 contributed $39.0 million to the year over year dollar
increase. Absent the 2006 charges discussed above, SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit in 2006
would have decreased by 90 basis points from 76.3% in 2005 to 75.4% in 2006.

Total reported compensation expense increased $40.7 miltion, or 8.1%, in 2006, as compared to 2005 due to
acquisitions and higher gross profit levels. However, as a percentage of gross profit, total compensation expense
improved by 70 basis points to 44.0% in 2006 from 44.7% in 2005. Absent the 2006 charges discussed above,
compensation expense as a percentage of gross profit would have improved 100 basis points to 43.7% in 2006
compared to 44.7% in 2005.

In 2006, advertising expense increased $4.8 million, or 8.1%, improving by 10 basis points as a percentage
of gross profit when compared to 2005. Approximately $3.3 million of the increase in 2006 was related to
acquisitions and the remaining increase is attributed to our targeted approach to allocate advertising dollars to
certain brands in key markets. Absent the 2006 charges discussed above, 2006 advertising expense as a
percentage of gross profit would have improved by 20 basis points to 5.1% compared to 5.3% in 2003,

In 2006, rent and rent related expenses increased $22.3 million, or 18.4%, as compared to 2005. As a
percentage of gross profit, rent and rent related expenses increased by 80 basis points to 11.6% in 2006 from
10.8% in 2005. Acquisitions contributed $5.9 million to the increase in 2006 compared to 2003. We also
experienced rent increases as a result of the completion of facility improvement projects and the resulting sale-
leaseback of these facilities, the effect of rising interest rates on our variable rate leases and the establishment of
lease exit accruals., Absent the 2006 charges discussed above, rent and rent related expenses as a percentage of
gross profit would have increased 60 basis points to 11.4% in 2006 compared to 10.8% in 2005.

Other SG&A expenses increased $22.4 million, or 12.9%, in 2006, as compared to 2005. Acquisitions
accounted for approximately $9.3 million of the increase. The remaining increase is primarily attributed to higher
service loaner expense, data processing, legal expenses and impairment charges.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation expense increased $4.1 million, or 17.5%, in 2007 compared to 2006. This increase was due
primarily to an $69.7 million increase in gross property and equipment related to continuing operations, excluding
land and construction in progress. The increase in depreciable property was due to dealership acquisitions, facility
projects on existing dealerships and the result of our strategy to own more of our dealership properties.
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Depreciation expense increased $4.5 million, or 24.0%, in 2006 compared to 2005. This increase was due
primarily to a $72.1 million increase in gross property and equipment related to continuing operations, excluding
land and construction in progress, as well as an adjustment to depreciation expense of $2.1 million which was
recorded in the second quarter of 2006. This adjustment was related to the reclassification of certain assets from
other current assets—construction in progress to depreciable property and equipment based on strategic capital
decisions which resulted in decisions not to sell these assets.

Interest Expense, Floor Plan

Interest expense, floor plan for new vehicles increased $6.7 million, or 12.3%, in 2007 compared to 2006.
The average new vehicle floor plan interest rate related to new vehicles incurred by continuing dealerships was
6.3% for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to 5.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006, which
increased interest expense by approximately $3.8 million. In addition, during 2007 the average floor plan balance
for new vehicles increased by $46.2 million, resulting in an increase in expense of approximately $2.9 million.
Approximately $29.1 million of the increase in the average floor plan balance for new vehicles was due to
additional dealerships we acquired in 2007. The average floor plan balance for new vehicles also increased due 10
an increase in the average price of vehicles due to general trends in the industry and our continued focus on
luxury vehicles.

Interest expense, floor plan for used vehicles increased $1.3 million, or 27.6%, in 2007 compared to 2006,
The increase was due primarily to an increase in the average floor plan balance for used vehicles of
$20.6 million.

Interest expense, floor plan for new vehicles increased $19.1 million, or 53.9%, in 2006 compared to 2003.
The average floor plan interest rate for new vehicles incurred by continuing dealerships was 5.9% for the year
ended December 31, 2006, compared to 4.3% for the year ended December 31, 2005, which increased interest
expense by approximately $13.4 million. In addition to this, during 2006 the average floor plan balance for new
vehicles increased $96.7 million which resulted in an increase in expense of approximately $5.7 million.
Approximately $22.0 million of the increase in the average new vehicle floor plan balance was due to additional
dealerships we acquired in 2006.

Interest expense, floor plan for used vehicles increased expense in 2006 compared to 2005 by $4.9 million.
The floor plan interest expense associated with used vehicles was the result of borrowings under the 2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility (see Note 6 in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements). The
average balance of the Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility was $101.0 million in 2006 and bore an interest rate
of between 5.7% and 6.5%.

Qur floor plan expenses related to new vehicles are pantially offset by amounts received from manufacturers
in the form of floor plan assistance. These payments are credited against our cost of sales upon the sale of the
vehicle. For franchises classified as continuing operations, our floor plan interest expense exceeded the amounts
we recognized in our Consolidated Income Statements from floor plan assistance by approximately $1.8 million,
$22.6 million and $30.9 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. As we continue to adjust our portfolio of
brands to more luxury and import franchises, we expect the difference between floor plan interest expense
incurred and floor plan assistance received to widen as import and luxury manufacturers provide a smaller level
of floor plan assistance than domestic manufacturers.

Interest Expense, Other, Net

During 2007, we entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “Fixed Swaps”) to effectively convert a
portion of our LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a fixed rate, in order to reduce our exposure to market risks
from fluctuations in interest rates. The Fixed Swaps have been designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and,
as a result, changes in the fair value of the Fixed Swaps will be recorded in other comprehensive (loss)/income,
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net of related income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. The benefit realized (the
difference between interest paid and interest received) was $0.5 million in 2007 and is included in interest
expense, other, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of [ncome.

In order to reduce our exposure to market risks from fluctuations in interest rates, we had an interest rate
swap agreement to effectively convert a portion of our LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a fixed rate which
matured on June 6, 2006 and had a notional principal of $100.0 million. Under the terms of the swap agreement,
we received interest payments on the notional amount at a rate equal to the one month LIBOR rate, and made
interest payments at a fixed rate of 4.50%. The incrementa! expense incurred (the difference between interest
paid and interest received) was $1.2 million and $0.1 million in 2005 and 2006, respectively, and is included in
interest expense, other, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income,

In 2003, we entered into five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million {collectively, the “Old
Variable Swaps”) to effectively convert a portion of our fixed rate debt to a LIBOR-based variable rate debt.
Under the Old Variable Swaps’ agreements, we received 8.625% on the respective notional amounts and paid
interest payments on the respective notional amounts at a rate equal to the six month LIBOR in arrears (as
determined on February 15 and August 15 of each year) plus a spread ranging from 3.50% to 3.84% with a
weighted average spread of 3.64%. In the second quarter of 2005, we canceled all of the Old Variahle Swaps.
The Old Variable Swaps had a collective mark-to-market of $0.4 million at cancellation. In connection with this
cancellation, we entered into five separate new interest rate swaps with identical terms to the Old Variable Swaps
excepl that we pay a variable rate equal to the fixed six month LIBOR rate which will be fixed on February 15
and August i5 of each year plus a spread ranging from 3.825% 1o 3.85% (with a weighted average spread of
3.83%) (collectively, the “New Variable Swaps”). The benefit realized (the difference between interest paid and
interest received) as a result of the Old and New Variable Swaps was $1.5 million in 2005, and an expense of
$0.4 miilion and $1.3 million in 2006 and 2007 respeciively. The incremental expenses/benefits of the Oid and
New Variable swaps are included in interest expense, other, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Changes in other interest expense are summarized in the schedule below:

2006 2007

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
in Interest Expense  in Interest Expense

(in millions) (in millions}
Interest rates—
« Changes in the average interest rate on the revolving facilities
(5.94% in 2005, 6.81% in 2006 and 7.28% in 2007) ........... $22 $(0.4)
* Rate spread benefit due to repayment of revolving credit facilities
with proceeds from 4.25% Convertible Notes issuance ........, (1.4) —
Debt balances—
* Increase/(Decrease) indebtbalances . ...................... (3.6) 2.8)
Other factors—
= Decrease/(increase) in capitalized interest ................... (1.3) 1.2
* Incremental interest savings related to variable to fixed
TALE SWADS . oottt it e (1.3 0.4)
* Incremental interest expense related to the Old and New
Variable Swaps ...... ... .. .. 1.9 0.9
» Interest allocation to discontinued operations .. ............... 0.8 0.5
« Increase in otherexpense, net .. ... ... ... ... ... . ieiiurr-n. 0.3 0.3
$2.4) $0.1

24




Other Income/Expense, Net

Other income/expense decreased approximately $0.7 million in 2007 compared to 2006 and increased
approximately $0.6 million in 2006 compared to 2005 due mostly to fees incurred in 2006 related to the
termination of the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended.

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate from continuing operations was 39.3% in 2007, 40.4% in 2006 and 37.1% in 2005
Changes in the effective tax rate between years were primarily the result of the distribution of taxable income
between states. We expect the effective tax rate in future periods to fatl within a range of 39% to 41%.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

We require cash to finance acquisitions and fund debt service and working capital requirements. We rely on
cash flows from operations, borrowings under our 2006 Credit Facility and offerings of debt and equity securities
to meet these requirements.

Because the majority of cur consolidated assets are held by our dealership subsidiaries, the majerity of our
cash flows from operations are generated by these subsidiaries. As a result, our cash flows and ability to service
debt depends to a substantial degree on the results of operations of these subsidiaries and their ability to provide
us with cash based on their ability to generate cash. Uncertainties in the economic environment may therefore
affect our overall liquidity.

A significant portion of our cash flow is used to fund dealership acquisitions. Following is a summary of
acquisition activity in recent years:

Cash Portion of
Subsequent Year Purchase Price
Year of Acquisition Revenues (net of cash acquired)
(in millions)
2004 L e e 589.4 268.7
2005 . e e 448.9 138.8
2006 .. e e 231.0 1104
2007 e e 475.0 (a) 212.5

{a) Revenues are estimated

We believe it prudent over time to maintain our long-term-debt to total capital ratio, net of cash and cash
equivalents (the “Debt te Capital Ratio”) at between 35% and 40%. At December 31, 2007, our Debt to Capital
Ratio was 42.4%. The increase of our Debt to Capital Ratio in the current year from 39.4% in the prior year is
primarily due to borrowings related to current year acquisitions, stock repurchases and the strategic decision to
own mortgaged dealership properties rather than enter into long-term operating leases. Without the effect of the
new mortgages entered into in 2007 (discussed below), our Debt to Capital Ratio at December 31, 2007 would
have been 40.7%. Depending on the timing of dealership acquisitions, our Debt to Capital ratio may fall outside
our targeted range.

Our long-term debt structure consists of the 2006 Credit Facility due in 2010 and various senior
subordinated notes due or redeemable in 2009, 2010, 2013 and 2015, notes payable to a finance company and
mortgage notes. These are discussed in more detail below. We believe the combination of cash flows from
operations, floor plan facilities, the availability under our 2006 Credit Facility (approximately $205.2 million was
available under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility at December 31, 2007) and our ability to raise funds in
the public capital markets are sufficient to fund both our working capital needs and the targeted acquisition level
discussed above.
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Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities
2006 Credit Facility

On February 17, 2006, we entered into a new four-year syndicated credit facility (the “2006 Credit
Facility”) with 14 financial institutions, including three manufacturer-affiliated finance companies, providing for
up to $1.2 billion in revolving credit and floor plan financing. The 2006 Credit Facility replaces the 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, (which was terminated February 17, 2006) and a portion of our existing
floor plan financing arrangements.

The 2006 Credit Facility has a borrowing limit of $1.2 billion, which may be expanded up to $1.45 biltion in
total credit availability upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility, up to
$700.0 million is available for new vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the “2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan
Sub-Facility™), up to $150.0 million is available for used vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the “2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility™) and up to $350.0 million is available for working capital and general corporate
purposes (the “2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility”). The amount available for borrowing under the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility is reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the aggregate face amount of any
outstanding letters of credit under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. The 2006 Revolving Credit
Sub-Facility matures on February 17, 2010, The 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used
Vehicte Floor Plan Sub-Facility mature on the earlier of February 17, 2010 or upon demand by the administrative
agent at the request of more than 80% of the lenders under those facilities.

At December 31, 2007, our 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility had a borrowing limit of $350.0 million,
subject to a borrowing base calculated on the basis of our receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of
certain additional collateral by one of our affiliates (the borrowing base was approximately $385.2 million at
December 31, 2007). The amount available to be borrowed under our 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility is
reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the cumulative face amount of outstanding letters of credit. At
December 31, 2007, we had $74.8 million in letters of credit outstanding and $205.2 million of borrowing
availability,

The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility bear interest at a specified
percentage above LIBOR according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by our Total Senior Secured
Debt to EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the
performance-based pricing grid is from 1.75% above LIBOR to 2.75% above LIBOR. The weighted average rate
of the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility during the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 was 6.81% and
5.95%, respectively. In addition, there is a quarterly commitment fee payable by us on the unused portion of the
2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by our Total
Senior Secured Debt to EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range
of the performance-based pricing grid for the quarterty commitment fee is 0.20% to 0.45% on the unused portion
of the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility.

The amounts outstanding under the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility bear interest at 1.00% above
LIBOR. The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility bear interest at 1.125%
above LIBOR. In addition, there are quarterly commitment fees of 0.20% payable by us on the unused portion of
both the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility.

Under the terms of collateral documents entered into with the lenders under the 2006 Credit Facility,
outstanding balances under the 2006 Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of substantially all of our assets and
the asscts of substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries, which domestic subsidiaries also guarantee our
obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, and the pledge of certain additional collateral by one of our affiliates.
The collateral for the 2006 Credit Facility also includes the pledge of the stock or equity interests of our
dealership franchise subsidiaries, except where such a pledge is prohibited by the applicable vehicle
manufacturer.
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We agreed under the 2006 Credit Facility not to pledge any assets to any third party, subject to certain stated
exceptions, including floor plan financing arrangements. In addition, the 2006 Credit Facility contains certain
negative covenants, including covenants which could restrict or prohibit the payment of dividends, capital
expenditures and material dispositions of assets as well as other customary covenants and default provisions.
Specifically, the 2006 Credit Facility permits cash dividends on our Class A and Class B common stock so long
as no event of default or unmatured default (as defined in the 2006 Credit Facility) has occurred and is
continuing and provided that, after giving effect to the payment of a dividend, we remain in compliance with
other terms and conditions of the 2006 Credit Facility.

The 2006 Credit Facility contains events of default, including cross-defaults to other material indebtedness,
change of control events and events of default customary for syndicated commercial credit facilities. Upon the
occurrence of an event of default, we could be required to immediately repay all outstanding amounts under the
2006 Credit Facility.

On February 17, 2006, in conjunction with the entrance into the 2006 Credit Facility, we and substantially all
of our domestic subsidiaries entered into collateral documents with the lenders, pursuant to which we and
substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries granted a security interest in substantially all their assets to secure our
obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, including a pledge of the stock or equity interests of our dealership
franchise subsidiaries except where such a pledge is prohibited by the applicable vehicle manufacturer. This grant of
security interests replaces the grant under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended.

2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as Amended

Prior to entering into the 2006 Credit Facility, we utilized the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended.
This facility was with Ford Credit, DaimlerChryster Financial, Toyota Financial, Bank of America, JP Morgan
Chase Bank and Merrill Lynch and had a borrowing limit of $550.0 million, subject to a borrowing base
calculated on the basis of receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of certain additional collateral by
one of our affiliates. The amounts outstanding under the 200} Revolving Credit Facility bore interest at 2.55
percentage points above LIBOR. The 2001 Revolving Credit Facility included an annual commitment fee equal
10 (.25% of the unused portion of the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility.

Senior Subordinated 8.625% Notes

In August 2003, we issued $200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.625% Notes. In November
2003, we issued an additional $75.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the 8.625% Notes. This $75.0
million issuance contains the same provisions and terms as the $200.0 million issuance. The 8.625% Notes are
unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior subordinated
indebtedness, mature on August 15, 2013 and are redeemable at our option after August 15, 2008. The
redemption premiums for the twelve-month periods beginning August 15 of the years 2008, 2009 and 2010 are
104,313%, 102.875% and 101.438%, respectively, In addition, up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of
the 8.625% Notes may be redeemed on or before August 15, 2006 with net cash proceeds from certain equity
offerings. Our obligations under the 8.625% Notes are guaranteed by our operating domestic subsidiaries.

We have five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million to effectively convert a portion of our
fixed rate debt under the 8.625% Notes to a LIBOR-based variable rate debt. See Note | to our Consolidated
Financial Statements and Item 7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Interest Rate
Risk. If the Standard & Poor’s or Moody's Investor Services rating on our 8.625% Notes drops to “B” or “B2",
respectively, or is withdrawn, the counterparty for $125.0 million of the total interest rate swap notional value of
$150.0 million has the option to terminate their interest rate swaps with us. If this counterparty terminates these
options, the mark-to-market value of these interest rate swaps must be paid by either us or the counterparty.
Further, if the counterparty terminates, it is likely that we will be required to pay the mark-to-market value of
these interest rate swaps. Additionally, if such a termination occurs, the fair value of $125.0 million of our
8.625% Notes will no longer be hedged.
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Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In May 2002, we issued $149.5 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.25% convertible senior
subordinated notes (“2002 Convertibles™) with net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately $145.1 million.
The 2002 Convertibles are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of our existing and
future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature on May 7, 2009 and are redeemable at our option after May 7,
2003. The redemption premiums for the twelve-month periods beginning May 7 of the years 2005, 2006, 2007
and 2008 are 103.00%, 102.25%, 101.50% and 100.75%, respectively. Our obligations under the 2002
Convertibles are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries. The 2002 Convertibles are convertible into shares of
Ctass A common stock, at the option of the holder, based on certain conditions. See Note 6 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion regarding these conversion conditions. Also see “Off-Balance Sheet
Arrangements” (subsequent heading also within this Item 7) for a discussion regarding the off-balance sheet
aspects of this financing. None of the conversion features on the 2002 Convertibles were triggered in 2007 and
none of the 2002 Convertibles were redeemed in 2007,

In November and December 2005, we issued $160.0 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible
senior subordinated notes (“2005 Convertibles”) with net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately $156.2
million, The 2005 Convertibles bear interest at an annual rate of 4.25% untii November 30, 2010 and 4.75%
thereafter. The net proceeds were used to repay a portion of the amounts outstanding under our 2001 Revolving
Credit Facility, as amended, and to pay the net cost of convertible note hedge and warrant transactions. The 2005
Convertibles are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior
subordinated indebtedness, mature on November 30, 2015 and are redeemable on ot after Qctober 31, 2010. Qur
obligations under the 2005 Convertibles are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries. Holders of the 20035
Convertibles may convert them into cash and shares of our Class A common stock based on certain conditions.
Upoen conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, we will be required to deliver cash equal to the lesser of the aggregate
principal amount of the 2005 Convertibles being converted or our total conversion obligation. If our total
conversion obligation exceeds the aggregate principal amount of the 2005 Convertibles being converted, we will
deliver shares of our Class A common stock to the extent of the excess amount, if any. We used $18.5 million of
the net proceeds from the sale of the 2005 Convertibles to pay the net cost of convertible note hedge and warrant
transactions. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding these conversion
conditions. Also see “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” (subsequent heading also within this Item 7) for a
discussion regarding the off-balance sheet aspects of this financing and the convertible note hedge and warrant
transactions. None of the conversion features on the 2005 Convertibles were triggered in 2007,

Notes Payable to a Finance Company

Three notes payable totaling $26.6 million in aggregate principal were assumed with the purchase of certain
dealerships during the second quarter of 2004 (the “Assumed Notes”). The Assumed Notes bear interest rates
from 9.52% to 10.52% (with a weighted average of 10.19%), have a combined monthly principai and interest
payment of $0.3 million, mature November 1, 2015 through September 1, 2016 and are collateralized by letters
of credit. We recorded the Assumed Notes at fair value using an interest rate of 5.35%. The interest rate used to
calculate the fair value was based on a quoted market price for notes with similar terms as of the date of
assumption. As a result of calculating the fair value, a premium of $7.3 million was recorded that will be
amortized over the lives of the Assumed Notes. Although the Assumed Notes allow for prepayment, the penalties
and fees are disproportionately burdensome relative to the Assumed Notes’ principal balance. Therefore, we do
not currently intend to prepay the Assumed Notes.
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Morigage Notes

During 2007, we obtained mortgage financing totaling $46.7 million in aggregate, on four of our dealership
properties. These mortgage notes require monthly payments of principal and interest through maturity and are
secured by the underlying properties. Maturity dates range between July 2017 and November 2027. The weighted
average interest rale was 6.81% at December 31, 2007. Proceeds received were used to repay borrowings under
our 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility.

Floor Plan Facilities

We finance all of our new and certain of our used vehicle inventory through standardized floor plan
facilities. These floor plan facilities bear interest at variable rates based on LIBOR and prime., The weighted
average inlerest rate for our floor plan facilities was 6.0% for 2006 and 6.4% for 2007. Our floor plan interest
expense is partially offset by amounts received from manufacturers, in the form of floor plan assistance. Floor
plan assistance received is capitalized in inventory and charged against cost of sales when the associated
inventory is sold. In 2007, we recognized approximately $40.4 million in manufacturer assistance. Interest
payments under each of our floor plan facilities are due monthly and we are generally not required to make
principal repayments prior to the sale of the vehicles.

Prior to February 17, 2006, we engaged in financing our new vehicle inventory with DaimlerChrysler
Financial Company, LLC (“DaimlerChrysler Financial”"), Ford Motor Credit Company (“Ford Credit™), General
Motors Acceptance Corporation (“GMAC”), Toyota Financial Services (“Toyota Financial™), Bank of America
and JP Morgan Chase Bank. On February 17, 2006 and shortly thereafter, we also entered into or renewed
separate floor plan credit arrangements with DaimlerChrysler Services North America LL.C, Ford Motor Credit
Company, General Motors Acceptance Corporation and BMW Financial Services NA, LLC. These separate floor
plan credit facilities provide a total of approximately $617.0 million of availability to finance new vehicle
inventory purchased from the respective manufacturer affiliates of these captive finance companies and $150.0
million of availability to finance used vehicle inventory. Each of these separate floor plan facilities bear interest
at variable rates based on prime and LIBOR. Qur obligation under each of these separate floor plan facilities are
secured, or will be secured, by liens on all of the new vehicle inventory financed under the respective floor plan
credit facility, as well as the proceeds from the sale of such vehicles, and certain other collateral.

Covenants and Default Provisions

Noncompliance with covenants, including a failure to make any payment when due, under our 2006 Credit
Facility, floor plan facilities, 8.625% Notes, 2002 Convertibles and 2005 Convertibles (collectively, our
“Material Debt Agreements™) could result in a default and an acceleration of our repayment obligation under our
2006 Credit Facility. A default under our 2006 Credit Facility would constitute a default under our floor plan
facilities and could entitle these lenders to accelerate our repayment obligations under the one or more of the
floor plan facilities. A default under our 2006 Credit Facility and one or more floor plan facilities would not
result in a default under our 8.625% Notes, 2002 Convertibles or 2005 Convertibles unless our repayment
obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility andfor one or more of the floor plan facilities were accelerated. An
acceleration of our repayment obligation under any of our Material Debt Agreements could result in an
acceleration of our repayment obligations under our other Material Debt Agreements. We expect to be in
compliance with the covenants for all of our long-term debt agreements for the foreseeable future. We were in
compliance with all of the restrictive and financial covenants on all of our floor plan and long-term debt facilities
required to be submitted as of and for the period ended December 31, 2007. The 2006 Credit Facility includes the
following financial covenants:

Covenant Required
Consolidated liquidity ratio . .......... .. . . i e 21.15
Consolidated fixed charge coverageratio ...... ... ... ... . ... oo >1.20
Consolidated total senior secured debt to EBITDA ratio ..................... <2325
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Acquisitions and Dispositions

During 2007, we acquired ten franchises for a combined purchase price of $212.5 million in cash, net of
cash acquired. The cash utilized for these acquisitions was financed by cash generated from our existing
operations and by borrowings under our 2006 Credit Facility. During 2007, we disposed of twelve franchises.
These disposals generated cash of $62.9 million, which includes $34.0 million related to the sale of the remaining
assets of Cornerstone Acceptance Corporation.

Sale-Leaseback and Mortgage Transactions

In an effort to generate additional cash flow, historically we sought to minimize the ownership of real
property. As a result, facilities either constructed by us or obtained in acquisitions were sold to third parties in
sale-leaseback transactions. The resulting leases generalty have initial terms of 10-20 years and include a series
of five-year renewal options. We have no continuing obligations under these arrangements other than lease
payments. In 2007, we sold $27.1 million in dealership property and equipment in sale-leaseback transactions.
There were no material gains or losses on these sales. In 2007, we began to adjust our strategy on ownership of
dealership properties and began to mortgage properties we own rather than generate capital by entering into sale-
leaseback transactions. We expect this trend to continue in the future, thereby reducing the frequency of future
sale-leaseback transactions.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures include the construction of new dealerships and collision repair centers, building
improvements and equipment purchased for use in our dealerships. Capital expenditures in 2007 were
approximately $78.3 million. As of December 31, 2007, commitments for facilities construction projects totaled
approximately $22.2 million.

Stock Repurchase Program

Our Board of Directors has authorized uvs to repurchase shares of our Class A common stock or redeem
securities convertible into Class A common stock. At the beginning of 2007, our remaining repurchase
authorization was approximately $12.2 million. During 2007, we received an additional $70.0 million stock
repurchase authorization from our Board of Directors. During 2007, we repurchased 1,916,200 shares for
approximately $48.9 million. As of December 31, 2007, we had $33.3 million remaining under our
Board authorization.

Dividends

Our Board of Directors approved four quarterly cash dividends totaling $0.48 per share during 2007.
Effective February 26, 2008, our Board of Directors approved a dividend of $0.12 per share for shareholders of
record on March 15, 2008 that will be paid on April 15, 2008. We intend to pay dividends in the future based on
available cash flows, covenant compliance and other factors. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for a description of restrictions on the payment of dividends.

Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities—Net cash provided by operating activities was $34.1 miilion and
$84.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2005, respectively. Net cash used in operating
activities was $61.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Since the majority of our inventories are
financed through floor plan notes payable and a significant portion of our receivables represent contracts in
transit which are typically funded within ten days of the sale of the vehicle, we are not required to make
significant investments in working capital that would negatively impact our operating cash flows.
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We arrange our inventory floor plan financing through both manufacturer captive finance companies and
commercial banks. Generally, our floor plan financed with manufacturer captives is recorded as trade floor plan
liabilities {with the resulting change being reflected as an operating cash flow). Our dealerships that obtain floor
plan financing from commercial banks record their obligation as non-trade floor plan liabilities (with the
resulting change being reflected as a financing cash flow).

Due to the presentation differences for changes in trade floor plan and non-trade floor plan, in the statement
of cash flows, decisions made by us to move dealership floor plan financing arrangements from one finance
source to another may cause significant variations in operating and financing cash flows without affecting our
overall liquidity, working capital, or cash flow. Accordingly, if all changes in floor plan notes payable were
classified as an operating activity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 the adjusted net cash
provided by operating activities would be $156.3 million, $249.5 million and $116.1 million, respectively.

During the third quarter of 2006, we generated cash of approximately $26.8 million from the sale of a portion
of Comerstone’s notes receivable to a third party. This inflow of cash is included in cash flows from operating
activities, change in receivables, in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2006. This transaction resulted in no material gains or losses. The proceeds from the sale were used
to pay down our 2006 Credit Facility. Cornerstone’s outstanding notes receivable at December 31, 2006 were $28.5
million, net of an allowance for credit losses of $4.9 million. During the third quarter of 2007, we sold the
remaining assets of Cornerstone and the proceeds are included in cash flows from investing activities.

Cash flows from Investing Activities—Cash used in investing activities during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$195.6 million, $118.0 million, and $131.9 million, respectively. The majority of the investing activities cash
outflow is related to dealership acquisitions and capital expenditures on construction in progress projects partially
offset by proceeds received from dealership dispositions and the sales of property and equipment. Purchases of
businesses, net of cash acquired, was $212.5 million, $110.4 million and $138.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amounts include repayments of setler’s floor plan notes
payable of $43.3 million, $37.1 million and $51.5 million, respectively.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities—Net cash provided by financing activities was $165.4 miilion,
$185.0 million and $45.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Cash
flow provided by financing activities is comprised mostly of the increases of floor plan notes payable—
non-trade, borrowings on our revolving credit facilities and proceeds from long-term debt partially offset by
repayments on our revolving credit facilities. During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2005, proceeds
from long-term debt amounted to $46.7 million and $156.2 million, respectively. The 2007 proceeds from long-
term debt were obtained from morigage financing on four dealership properties. Proceeds received were used to
repay borrowings under our 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. The 2005 proceeds from long-term debt were
generated by the issuance of our 2005 Convertibles, the net proceeds of which were used to repay a portion of the
amounts outstanding under our Revolving Facility and to pay the net cost of convertible note hedge and warrant
transactions.

Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations—Qur Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows includes both
continuing and discontinued operations. Net cash used in operating activities associated with discontinued
operations for the year ended December 31, 2007 was approximately $83.1 million and was substantially
comprised of changes in assets and liabilities that relate to dealership operations. In our Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows, cash flows from investing activities includes the line item “Proceeds from sale of franchises”
which is entirely related to discontinued operations. With the exception of “Proceeds from sale of franchises” in
the amount of $62.9 million and “Net payments on notes payable—floor plan—non-trade” in the amount of
$14.5 million, 2007 cash flows from investing and financing activities contain an immaterial amount of cash
flows from discontinued operations. Since discontinued operations typically contain unprofitable franchises, the
absence of these cash flows would generally increase consolidated cash flows from operations.
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Guarantees and Indemnifications

In connection with the operation and disposition of dealership franchises, we have entered into various
guarantees and indemnifications. Also, when we sell dealership franchises, we attempt to assign any related
leases to the buyer of the franchise to eliminate any future liability. However, if we are unable to assign the
related leases to the buyer, we will attempt to sublease the leased properties to the buyer at a rate equal to the
terms of the original leases. In the event we are unable to sublease the properties to the buyer with terms at least
equal to our lease, we may be required to record lease exit accruals. At December 31, 2007, our future gross
minimum lease payments related to properties subleased to buyers of sold franchises totaled approximately $53.9
million. Future sublease payments expected to be received related to these lease payments were $46.9 million at
December 31, 2007. See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding lease
accruals, guarantees and indemnifications. Also see “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” (subsequent heading also
within this Item7) for a discussion regarding the off-balance sheet aspects of these guarantees and
indemnifications.

Future Liguidity Outlook

Qur future contractual obligations are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total
Floor Plan Facilities (1) .. $1,174262 8§ — § — § — § — % — $1,174262
Long-Term Debt (2) ... .. 4.197 133.667 232,149 4,808 5,038 322,138 701,997

Estimated Interest

Paymentson .........
Floor Plan Facilities (3} .. 11,960 — — — — —_ 11,960
Estimated Interest

Paymentson .........

Long-Term Debt (4) .. ... 50,786 42,638 39,366 6,335 5,951 22934 168,010
Operating Leases ....... 115,516 105,121 100,203 96,248 92,085 542,805 1,051,978
Construction Contracis . . . 22,221 — — —_ —_ — 22221
Other Purchase

Obligations .......... 11,474 10,475 3,515 —_ -— — 25,464
Acquisition Purchase . ...
Commitments (5) ....... 18,600 — — — — — 18,600
FIN 48 Liability (6) ..... 500 — —_ -— —_ 24,062 24,562
Total ................. $1,409.516 $291,901 $375,233 $107,391 §$103,074 $911,939 $3,199,054

(1) Floor plan facilities includes amounts classified.as liabilities assoctated with assets held for sale.

(2) Amounts under the 8.625% Notes and the 2002 Convertibles are redeemable at our option (see preceding
discussion regarding long-term debt and credit facilities) but have been classified in this schedule according
to contractual maturity. The 2005 Convertibles are redeemable at both our option and the option of the
holders of the 2005 Convertibles in November 2010 and have, therefore, been classified for maturity in
2010.

(3) Floor plan facilities balances (inciuding amounts classified as liabilities associated with assets held for sale)
are correlated with the amount of vehicle inventory and are generally due at the time that a vehicle is sold.
Estimated interest payments were calculated using the December 31, 2007 floor plan facilities balance, the
weighted average interest rate for the fourth quarter of 2007 of 6.18% and the assumption that floor plan
facilities balances at December 31, 2007 would be relieved within sixty days in connection with the sale of
the associated vehicle inventory,

{4) Estimated interest payments calculated assuming contractual maturities, no principal payments on the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility before the contractual maturity and the interest rate in effect at December 31,
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2007 (6.6%) for the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. Estimated interest payments include net interest
expense from our interest rate swaps. See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Results of Operations—Interest Expense, Other, Net, and Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Interest Rate Risk, for discussion regarding our interest rate
swaps.

(5) Amount represents estimated purchase price of tangible and intangible assets net of floor plan facilities
balances of planned acquisitions,

(6) Amount represents recorded liability, including interest and penalties, related to FIN 48. See Notes | and 7
to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements,

We believe our best source of liquidity for future growth remains cash flows generated from operations
combined with our availability of borrowings under our floor plan facilities (or any replacements thereof), our
2006 Credit Facility and our ability to raise funds in the public capital markets. Though uncertainties in the
economic environment may affect our ability to generate cash from operations, we expect to generate more than
sufficient cash flow to fund our debt service and working capital requirements and any seasonal operating
requirements, including our currently anticipated internal growth for our existing businesses, for the next twelve
months and the foreseeable future. Once these needs are met, we may use remaining cash flow to support our
acquisition strategy or repurchase shares of our Class A common stock or publicly traded debt securities, as
market conditions warrant.

Seasonality

Our operations are subject to seasonal variations. The first and fourth quarters generally contribute less
operating profits than the second and third quarters. Weather conditions, the timing of manufacturer incentive
programs and model changeovers cause seasonality in, and may adversely affect our profitability and new
vehicle demand. Parts and service demand remains more stable throughout the year.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Guarantees and Indemnifications

In connection with the operation and disposition of dealership franchises, we have entered into various
guarantees and indemnifications. We expect the aggregate amount of the obligations we guarantee to increase as
we dispose of additional franchises. See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
regarding these guarantees and indemnifications. Past performance under these guarantees and indemnifications
and their estimated fair value has been immaterial to our liquidity and capital resources. Although we seek to
mitigate our exposure in connection with these matters, these guarantees and indemnifications, including
environmental exposures and the financial performance of lease assignees and sub lessees, cannot be predicted
with certainty. An unfavorable resolution of one or more of these matters could have a material adverse effect on
our liquidity and capital resources.

5.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

The 2002 Convertibles are convertible into shares of our Class A common stock, at the option of the holder,
based on certain conditions. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding these
conversion conditions which are primarily linked to the per share price of our Class A common stock and the
relationship between the trading values of our Class A Common Stock and the 2002 Convertibles. This type of
financing arrangement was selected by us in order to achieve a more favorable interest rate (as opposed to other
forms of available financing). The 2002 Convertibles are material to our liquidity and capital resources.

4.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes, Hedge and Warrants

The 2005 Convertibles are convertible at the option of the holder into cash and shares of our Class A
common stock, based on certain conditions. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
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regarding these conversion conditions which are primarily linked to the relationship between the trading values
of our Class A common stock and the 2005 Convertibles. Since both the holders of the 2005 Convertibles and we
can redeem these notes on or after October 31, 2010, we expect that either a conversion or a redemption of these
notes will occur in 2010. This type of financing arrangement was selected by us in order to achieve a more
favorable interest rate (as opposed to other forms of available financing). The 2005 Convertibles are material to
our liquidity and capital resources.

In connection with the issuance of the 2005 Convertibles we entered into convertible hedge and warrant
transactions. The convertible note hedge and warrant transactions are designed to increase the effective
conversion price per share of our Class A common stock from $24.14 to $33.00 and, therefore, mitigate the
potential dilution upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles at the time of conversion. The convertible note hedge
and warrant transactions have been recorded at cost within stockholders’ equity on our Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with EITF No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to,
and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock™ and EITF No. 01-6, “The Meaning of “Indexed to a
Company’s Own Stock” ”. See Note | to our Consolidated Financial Statements, Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, for a discussion regarding the convertible note hedge and warrant transactions,

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our variable rate floor plan facilities, revolving credit facility borrowings and other variable rate notes
expose us to risks caused by fluctuations in the applicable interest rates. The total outstanding balance of such
variable instruments after considering the effect of our interest rate swaps (see below) was approximately $829.4
million at December 31, 2007 and approximately $1,331.3 million at December 31, 2006. A change of 100 basis
points in the underlying interest rate would have caused a change in interest expense of approximately $10.7
million in 2007 and approximately $14.5 million in 2006. Of the total change in interest expense, approximately
$8.4 million in 2007 and approximately $10.9 million in 2006 would have resulted from the floor plan facilities.
During the last half of 2007, we entered into interest rate swap agreements (see table below) which lessen the
effect of changes in interest rates on our results of operations. As these swaps were only in place for a portion of
the year, only a portion of the annual effect of these swaps was considered in the calculation of the $8.4 million
amount above.

In addition to our variable rate debt, approximately 18% of our dealership facilities have monthly lease
payments that fluctuate based on LIBOR interest rates. A change in interest rates of 100 basis points would have
had an estimated impact on rent expense of approximately $2.3 mitlion in 2007.

In order to reduce our exposure to market risks from fluctuations in interest rates, we had an interest rate
swap agreement to effectively convert a portion of our LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The swap
matured June 6, 2006 and had a notional principal of $100.0 million. Under the terms of the swap, we received
interest payments on the notional amount at a rate equal to the one month LIBOR rate, adjusted monthly, and
made interest payments at a fixed rate of 4.50%.

We have five separate interest rate swaps with notional principal amounts totaling $150.0 million
(collectively, the “New Variable Swaps™) to effectively convert a portion of our fixed rate debt under the 8.625%
Notes to a LIBOR-based variable rate debt. Under the New Variable Swaps, we receive 8.625% on the respective
notional amounts and pay interest payments on the respective notional amounts at a rate equal to the six month
LIBOR which is fixed on February 15 and August 15 of each year plus a spread ranging from 3.825% to 3.85%
with a weighted average spread of 3.83%. The New Variable Swaps expire on August 15, 2013,
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During 2007, we entered into interest rate swap agreements (collectively, the “Fixed Swaps™} to effectively
convert a portion of its LIBOR based variable rate debt to a fixed rate. Under the terms of the Fixed Swaps
interest rates reset monthly, We will receive and pay interest based on the following:

Notional

(in millions)
$200.0
$100.0
$100.0
$100.0
5 42
$ 250
$ 150
5250
$ 132

Pay Rate

4.935%
5.002%
5.265%
5.319%
7.100%
5.160%
4.965%
4.885%
4.655%

Receive Rate

one monfh LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR
one month LIBOR

Maturing Date

May 1, 2012
June 1, 2012
June 1, 2012
July 1, 2010
July 10, 2017
September 1, 2012
September 1, 2012
October 1, 2012
December 10, 2017

Future maturities of variable and fixed rate debt, and related interest rate swaps are as follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Liabilities {Amounts in thousands, except for interest rates)
Long-term Debt:

FixedRate ... ........ 3,316 132,731 161,273 3,932 309,036 614,450 618.114

Average Stated
Interest Rate ..... 9.26% 5.33% 4.34% 9.32% 8.54% 6.75%
Variable Rate ........ 881 936 70,876 876 13,102 87,547 87,547
Average Stated
Interest Rate ..... 6.75% 6.74% 6.60% 6.65% 6.65% 0.61%
Interest Rate Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps:

Fixed 10 Variable ... ... — — — — 150,000 150,000 724
Average pay rate ... . 383% 3.83%

+6month  + 6 month
LIBOR LIBCR
Receiverate . ....... 8.625% 8.625%

Variable to Fixed . .. ... 821 876 100,876 876 465,876 13,084 582,405 (23.870)
Average pay rate . ... 5.30% 5.26% 532% 5.26% 5.03% 5.24% 5.09%
Receiverate ........ One month  One month  One month  One month  One month  One month  Cne month

LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBCR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

Foreign Currency Risk

In common with other automotive retailers, we purchase certain of our new vehicle and parts inventories
from foreign manufacturers. Although we purchase our inventeries in U.S. Dollars, our business is subject to
foreign exchange rate risk which may influence automobile manufacturers’ ability to provide their products at
competitive prices in the United States. To the extent that we cannot recapture this volatility in prices charged to
customers or if this volatility negatively impacts consumer demand for our products, this volatility could
adversely affect our future operating results.
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Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Report of Management

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Under the supervision and with the partictpation of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based on the framework in Infernal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007,

During 2007, Sonic acquired five automotive dealerships which were not included in our assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financiat reporting. As a result, management’s conclusion regarding the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting does not extend to these dealerships. These
dealerships represented approximately 3.1% of Sonic’s 2007 revenues from continuing operations. See Note 2 to
our accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on these 2007 acquisitions.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been attested
to by Deloitte and Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our firancial
statements included in this Annual Report, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sonic Automotive, Inc.
Charlotte, North Carolina

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Sonic Automotive, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described in the Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from their assessment the internal control
over financial reporting at Jaguar Houston, Land Rover Houston, Calabasas Mercedes, Assacl BMW and Long
Beach BMW (the “2007 Acquisitions”), which were acquired on January 22, 2007, January 22, 2007, June 14,
2007, June 18, 2007 and July 30, 2007, respectively, and whose financial statements constitute (.2 percent and
6.5 percent of net and total assets, respectively, 3.1 percent of revenues, and 5.5 percent of net income of the
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Accordingly, our
audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at the 2007 Acquisitions. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
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audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal contro! over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 10 error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the
Company and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements
and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s adoption of the provisions of FASB
Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, the application of the provisions of Securities
and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements, and the adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Shared-Based Puyment.

/s!{ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 29, 2008
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Financial Statements

REFPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sonic Automotive, Inc.
Charlotte, North Carolina

We have aundited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sonic Antomotive, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company™) as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statements based on our andits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opimnion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Sonic Automotive, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the peried ended December 31, 2007, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Notes | and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2007, the Company
adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48). As allowed in the
year of adoption, the Company recorded a charge of $8.6 million to 2007 beginning retained earnings resulting
from its initial application of the provisions of FIN 48. Also, as discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company applied the provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements in 2006. In accordance with the transition provisions of SAB No. 108, the
Company recorded a $4.6 million cumulative decrease, net of tax, to retained earnings as of January [, 2006. As
discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
compensation expense for share-based awards to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
123(R), Share-Based Payment. '

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DeLoiTTE & ToUuCHE LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 29, 2008
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2006 and 2007
{Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash andcashequivalents .......... ... ... i,
Receivables, Bt ... ittt e e et e e e e e e
RT3 110 13-
Assets held forsale ... .. i i i e e e e
Construction in progress and land expected tobesold .................. .. ...,
OUNET CUITENE BSSEES . v v vt v ittt e s ot sme e gt a e e naasrisanns

Total CUITENE A8 LS . . . ottt ettt it ettt e tm ot s e aeaa e
Property and Equipment, D€t .. ... ... . i e
GoOdWiIll . ..ot e e
Other Intangible ASSEts, NEL . ... oot i i e e
L0 11 178 - -3 = o U PPN

Ot A LS oot r ittt e e e e e e e,

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Notes payable—floor plan—trade ............ ... ... it
Notes payable—floor plan—non-trade .......... ... ..ciiiiiiiiii i
Trade accounts payable ......... ... .. ... . i
ACCIUEd IMIETESt .« . .. ittt it et e e i e e
Other accrued LabilitIes . ... vttt it e et et et ettt e ans
Liabilities associated with assets held forsale—trade ........... ... ... ... .....
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale—non-trade .................... ...
Current maturities of long-termdebt .. ... ... ... il e

Total current liabilities .. ... ... ... ... i e
Eong-Term Debt . . ... . e
Other Long-Term Liabilities . ... ... ... i it aeeee
Deferred Income TAXES .. ..ot ettt it ettt it et
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Class A convertible preferred stock, noneissued . ........ ..o
Class A common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 41,890,540
shares issued and 30,691,576 shares outstanding at December 31, 2006; 42,413,646
shares issued and 29,298,482 shares outstanding at December 31,2007 ..........
Class B common stock; $.01 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 12,029,375
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 ......
Paid-incapital . . ... ... e e
Retained €arnings . . ... . o onr i e
Accumulated other comprehensive income .. ......... .. ... ...l
Treasury stock, at cost (11,198,964 Class A shares held at December 31, 2006 and
13,115,164 Class A shares held at December 31,2007) .......................

Total stockholders’ equity ....... .. o
Total Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity ... ... ... . oo i,

See notes 10 consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2006 2007
$ 1269 3 16,514
385,849 347,309
991,984 1,093,017
160,571 87,342
26,198 6,421
35,834 29,458
1,613,132 1,580,061
220,551 286,591
1,155,428 1,276,074
94,136 111,342
41,517 28,676
$3,124,764 $3,282,744
$ 377,943 § 298376
686,515 827,294
68,016 66,026
19,336 19,202
180,884 162,430
54,229 25,057
42,063 23,535
2,707 4,197
1,431,693 1,426,117
598,627 697,800
39,570 83,829
151,034 144,170
416 424
121 121
464,011 488,983
598,293 664,280
— (15,114)
(159,001) (207,866)
903,840 930,828
$3,124,764 $3,282,744




SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007
{Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
Revenues:
Newvehicles . ...t e e e $4,490,837 $4,898,507 $5,056,480
Used vehicles . ... e e 1,135,873 1,281,887 1,449,537
Wholesale vehicles .............. i 503,521 496,531 428,129
Total vehicles . ...t 6,130,231 6,676,925 6,934,146
Parts, service and collisionrepair ................. ... ....... 1,008,506 1,118,366 1,191,347
Finance, insurance andother .. ........ ... .. ... ... . ... ..... 180,063 189,788 211,440
Total revenues . ...t i e 7,318,800 7985079 8,336,933
Cost of Sales:
Newvehicles .. ........ .. . e 4,162,577 4,540,454 4,705,691
Used vehicles . ... ... 1,022,257 1,158,851 1,319,098
Wholesale vehicles . ... ... ... .. . ... . 503,198 499,314 430,970
Total vehicles .......... ... . .. . .. 5,688,032 6,198,619 6,455,759
Parts, service and collisionrepair ........... ... ............. 513,597 558,169 589,589
Totalcostofsales ........ ..o e, 6,201,629 6,756,788 7,045,348
Gross Profil ... e e e 1,117,171 1,228,291 1,291,585
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...................... 852,740 942,890 967,706
Depreciation and amortization .. .........0uuiriiii i, 18,742 23,248 27,306
Operating income .. ... e e 245,689 262,153 296,573
Other income / (expense):
Interest expense, floorplan ............. ... iiiiinninn... (35,543) (59,580) (67,638)
Interest expense, other, net ........ ... .. i 42,017 (39,662) (39,795)
Other income / (expense), et .. ........ccoeiiiineennnnnnn... 46 (589) 73
Total otherexpense ..........coir it (77,514) (99,831)  (107,360)
Income from continuing operations before taxes ................... 168,175 162,322 189,213
Provision for inCOME tAXES . ... vttt e e 62,462 65,490 74,377
Income from continuing operations . ...............ccccvirin.. 105,713 96,832 114,836
Discontinued operations:
Loss from operations and the sale of discontinued franchises .. ... (17,433) (23,054) (26,585)
Incometaxbenefit . ... ... .. ... .. ... 3,581 7,339 7,251
Loss from discontinued operations . ............................. (13,852) (15,715) (19,334)
Nt INCOIMIE . ..ottt e e e e e e e £ 901,861 $ S8LI17 § 95502
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings per share from continuing operations ................ $ 253 % 229 §% 2.70
Loss per share from discontinued operations . ..........,...... (0.33) (0.37) 0.45)
Eamingspershare . ........ ... .. ... .. ... ... $ 220 % 192 § 2.25
Weighted average common shares outstanding . ............... 41,817 42,336 42,479
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings per share from continuing operations ................ $ 242§ 2,18 §% 2.54
Loss per share from discontinued operations . .......,......... (0.30) (0.33) 041
Earnings pershare ... ...t $ 212 % 185 § 2,13
Weighted average common shares outstanding ................ 45,533 46,265 46,941
Dividends declared per common share $ 048 % 048 3§ 0.48

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
0 L T 1+
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property, plantand equipment ................. ... ...
Provision for bad debt €XpPense ... ... .. i e e e,
Other amOTTIZAtion . .. ..o vttt e e i e e i e e
Debt issuance cost amortization .. . ... ottt
Debt discount amortization, tet of premium amortization .. ............ ... i
Stock—based compensation XPensSe .. ... ... .o e e
Amortization of restricled StOCK . .. .. ... L e e
Restricted stock forfeiture .. ... ... . e
Deferred iNCOME AXES .« v vttt it et et e ettt et e
Equity interest in eamings of INVESIEES ... ... ot e e
Impairment of franchise agreements . ..., . ... .. . i i i e
Impairment of property and equipment .. ...... ... .o i e
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of franchises and property and equipment . ......................
Loss on exit of leased dealerships ... ... .. . . e e e

Changes in assets and liabilities that relate to operations:
Receivables .. .. ... .. i e
INVenIOMES . .. . i i
OREr A88ETS . .t s
Notes payable—floorplan—irade ... i i i i
Trade accounts payable and other liabilities ........ ... ... ... ... . ... i il

Total adjustments . ... .. .out i e
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities . ... .. ....... ... . it

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of businesses, netof cashacquired .. ....... ... ... . ... . ... . e
Purchases of property and equipment . ...... ... . i it s
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment ... ittt i ey
Proceeds from sale of franchises ......... . i i
Distributions from equity MIVESIEES ... ... ... .. e

Net cash used in investing activities .......... . i i i

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowings on notes payable floor plan—non-trade .. ... ...t
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities . . .. ... o e
Repayments on revolving credit facilities ...... . .. ... ... .o oo il
Proceeds from Jong-termdebt .. .. ... e
Dbt iSSUANCE COSIS i v v et e e e
Purchase of convertible note hedge and warrants, net ........... ... ..o i
Payments on long-termdebt ... ... L e
Purchases of treasury StoCK ... . e s
Income tax benefit associated with stock compensation plans ... .. ... ..ot
Income tax benefit associated with convertible hedge .. ........... ... ... ... ool
Issuance of shares under stock compensationplans ....... ... ... ... i i
Dividends paid ... ... ...

Net cash provided by financing activities . ... ... ... . ... ittt

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ..................
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNINGOF YEAR .................. .. ... ...

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDOF YEAR .. ... . ... . s

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE QF NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in zcerual for purchases of property and equipment . ... .. ... ... i
Adoption of SAB 108 ... . i e e e e
Adoption of FIN 48 .. ... .. i
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Restricted StOCK ISSHANCE . ..ottt i e e et e s
Change i fair value of cash flow hedging instruments (net of tax expensef(bencfit) of $798, $(13)
and $(9,071) in 2005, 2006 and 2007, reSpectively) ... ... vt i e
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of amount capitalized ... ... . e
IO LAKESE L.ttt i e et it e e e

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Years Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
$ 9t881 § BLI17T 3 95502
21,982 23,903 27438
13,078 9.210 3.169
309 715 1,156
401 1,054 1,147
77 691 807
114 4,511 5,589
1,485 2,291 3,313
(311) — (2,427)
30,731 10,572 24,028
(819) (913) (645)
— 2,525 3.100
1,950 10,988 2932
6 (3,582) 1,145
649 9,598 2275
(49,770) 1,472 18,753
36,123 (20.049) (17.003)
(17,589) 15,079 (18.093)
{40.535)  (192.803) (108,739)
(5.661) (18,241} (9.396)
(7.780)  (142,981) (61,451)
84,081 (61,864) 34,051
(138,760) (110,371) (212,472}
(81,638) (99,848) (78.,293)
26,435 40,698 31.369
61,572 50,961 62,882
500 600 9200
(131.891)  (117.960) (195.616)
32,060 311,344 122,251
671,776 849,758 1,057,915
(778.663) (961,418) {1,008,001)
156,159 — 46,667
{640) {2,776) —
{13,460) — —
(2,094) (1,889 (2,158)
(5.584) (15,056) (48.86%)
1,504 4,396 3,147
175 1,762 1914
9,229 19,239 13,444
20,071 {20,406) (20,931
45,385 184,954 165,383
(2,425) 5,130 3,818
9,991 7.566 12,696
5 7566 § 126% 3 16514
$ 514 5 (598) §$ (568)
b —  § (@607 3 —
3 — 3 — § (8582
$ 651 $ 4,118 § 9,678
$ 1248 % (200 § (14,800)
$ 91,853 $114538 3% 113834
$ 30434 % 46329 $ 46,683




SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All tables in thousands except per share amounts)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Business—Sonic Automotive, Inc, (“Sonic” or the “Company”) is one of the largest
automotive retailers in the United States (as measured by total revenue), operating 169 dealership franchises and
34 collision repair centers throughout the United States as of December 31, 2007. Sonic sells new and used cars
and light trucks, sells replacement parts, provides vehicle maintenance, warranty, paint and repair services, and
arranges related financing and insurance for its automotive customers. As of December 31, 2007, Sonic sold a
total of 33 foreign and domestic brands of new vehicles.

Principles of Consolidation—All of Sonic’s dealership and non-dealership subsidiaries are wholly owned
and consolidated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements except for one fifty-percent owned
dealership that is accounted for under the equity method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
Opinton No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock”. All material
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Reclassifications—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, individual franchises sold, terminated or
classified as held for sale are required to be reported as discontinued operations. During 2007, Sonic completed
the disposal of 12 automobile franchises, and had approved, but not yet completed, the disposition of 20
additional franchises. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, the results of operations of these
franchises for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are reporied as discontinued operations for all
periods presented. Many of the provisions of SFAS No. 144 involve judgment in determining whether a franchise
will be reported as continuing or discontinued operations. Such judgments include whether a franchise will be
sold or terminated, the period required to complete the disposition and the likelihood of changes to a plan for
sale. If in future periods Sonic determines that a franchise should be either reclassified from continuing
operations to discontinued operations or from discontinued operations to continuing operations, previously
reported Consolidated Statements of Income are reclassified in order to reflect the current classification.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 1087), which provides interpretive
guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements
for the purpose of a materiality assessment. In years prior to 2006, Sonic used the “rollover” method as described
in SAB 108 in evaluating the effect of misstatements in its financial statements. Based on utilizing the “rollover”
method in prior years, Sonic had determined that certain balance sheet misstalements were not material to its
overall financial statement presentation. These misstatements relate to the recorded amount of accruals pertaining
to bonuses, professional services and vacation obligations. The misstatements resulted from Sonic’s policy of
expensing bonuses and vacation obligations. A portion of the misstatements resulted from Sonic’s policy of
expensing bonuses in the period the items were paid rather than in the period they became payable and thus
understated accrued liabilities and overstated retained earnings. This accounted for approximately $0.7 million of
the after-tax charge to beginning retained earnings as described betow. In addition, prior to 2004, Sonic had
accrued for the vested vacation earned by its associates in the prior period but did not accrue for the vacation
earned in the current period which had not yet vested. The result was an understatement of accrued liabilities and
an overstatement of retained earnings. This accounted for $3.9 million of the after-tax charge to retained earnings
described below. Each of the misstatements originated in years prior to 2004, Sonic evaluated the effect of these
misstatements vunder both the “rollover method” and the “iron curtain” method in 2006 as prescribed by SAB
108. As a result of this evaluation, Sonic determined that although these misstatements continued to be
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

immaterial under the *“rollover” method, the misstatements were material to the financial statements when
measured under the “iron curtain” method. As allowed in the initial year of adoption, Sonic has corrected the
misstatements in 2006 with a charge to 2006 beginning retained earnings of approximately $4.6 million, net of
associated taxes of $2.8 million, with offsets increasing other accrued liabilities by $7.4 million.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation {(“FIN")
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN No. 48 prescribes financial statement recognition
and measurement criteria for a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. See Note 7, Income
Taxes, for discussion.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value
measures required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance as to whether
or not an instrument is carried at fair value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, the year beginning January 1, 2008 for Sonic. Sonic is currently reviewing the provisions of
SFAS No. 157 to determine the impact on its consolidated operating resulis, financial position and cash flows,

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 159, “The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Sonic is currently reviewing the provisions of
SFAS No. 159 to determine the impact on its consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations” (SFAS 141{R)). SFAS
No. 141(R) provides guidance regarding the allocaticn of purchase price in business combinations, measurement
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as well as other intangible assets acquired. Also in December 2007, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements (SFAS 160). SFAS
160 provides accounting and reporting standards for a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary if certain conditions exist. SFAS 141{R) and SFAS 160 are effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is prohibited. Sonic is currently reviewing the
provisions of SFAS 141(R) and SFAS 160 and have not yet determined the impact of these statements on its
consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires Sonic’s management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates particularly related to allowance for
credit oss, realization of inventory, intangible asset and deferred tax asset values, reserves for tax contingencies,
legal matters, reserves for future chargebacks, results reported as continuing and discontinued operations,
insurance reserves and certain accrued expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Sonic classifies cash and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less at the date of purchase, including short-term time deposits and government agency and

corporate obligations, as cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition—Sonic records revenue when vehicles are delivered to customers, when vehicle
service work is performed and when parts are delivered.
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Sonic arranges financing for customers through various financial institutions and receives a commission
from the financial institution either in a flat fee amount or in an amount equal to the difference between the
interest rates charged to customers over the predetermined interest rates set by the financial institution. Sonic also
receives commissions from the sale of various insurance contracts to customers. Sonic may be assessed a
chargeback fee in the event of early cancellation of a loan or insurance contract by the customer. Finance and
insurance commission revenue is recorded net of estimated chargebacks at the time the related coniract is placed
with the financial institution.

Sonic also receives commissions from the sale of non-recourse third party extended service contracts to
customers. Under these contracts, the applicable manufacturer or third party warranty company is directly liable
for all warranties provided within the contract. Commission revenue from the sale of these third party extended
service contracts is recorded net of estimated chargebacks at the time of sale. As of December 31, 2006 and
2007, the amounts recorded as allowances for commission chargeback reserves were $15.1 million and $13.0
million, respectively. The majority of these amounts recorded as allowances for commission chargeback reserves
were classified in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements as other accrued liabilities and the
remaining amount was classified as other long-term liabilities.

Floor Plan Assistance—Sonic receives floor plan assistance payments from certain manufacturers. This
assistance reduces the carrying value of Sonic’s new vehicle inventory and is recognized as a reduction of cost of
sales at the time the vehicle is sold. Amounts included in cost of sales were $33.7 million, $37.0 million and
$36.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. There was an additional $7.2
million, $5.2 million and $3.7 million in floor plan assistance related to discontinued operations for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Contracts in Transit—Contracts in transit represent customer finance contracts evidencing loan agreements
or lease agreements between Sonic, as creditor, and the customer, as borrower, to acquire or lease a vehicle in
situations where a third-party finance source has given Sonic initial, non-binding approval to assume Sonic’s
position as creditor. Funding and final approval from the finance source is provided upon the finance source’s
review of the loan or lease agreement and related documentation executed by the customer at the dealership.
These finance contracts are typically funded within ten days of the initial approval of the finance transaction
given by the third-party finance source. The finance source is not contractually obligated to make the loan or
lease to the customer until it gives its final approval and funds the transaction, and until such final approval is
given, the contracts in transit represent amounts due from the customer to Sonic. Contracts in transit are included
in receivables on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and totaled $171.2 million at December 31,
2006 and $166.1 million at December 31, 2007.

Accounts Receivable—In addition 10 contracts in transit, Sonic’s accounts receivable consist of amounts
due from the manufacturers for repair services performed on vehicles with a remaining factory warranty and
amounts due from third parties from the sale of parts. Sonic believes that there is a minimal risk of
uncollectability on warranty receivables. Sonic evaluates parts and other receivables for collectability based on
the age of the receivable, the credit history of the customer and past collection experience. The allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable is not significant,

Inventories—Inventories of new, recorded net of manufacturer credits, and used vehicles, including
demonstrators, are stated at the lower of specific cost or market. Inventories of parts and accessories are
accounted for using the “first-in, first-out” (“FIFO"} method of inventory accounting and are stated at the lower
of FIFO cost or market. Other inventories are primarily service loaner vehicles and, to a lesser extent, vehicle
chassis, other supplies and capitalized customer work-in-progress (open customer vehicle repair orders), Other
inventories are stated at the lower of specific cost (depreciated cost for service loaner vehicles) or market.
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Sonic assesses the valuation of all of its vehicle and parts inventories and maintains a reserve where the cost
basis exceeds the fair market value. In making this assessment for new vehicles, Sonic primarily considers the
age of the vehicles along with the timing of annual and model changeovers. For used vehicles, Sonic considers
recent market data and trends such as loss histories along with the current age of the inventory. Parts inventories
are primarily assessed considering excess quantity and continued usefulness of the part. The risk with parts
inventories is minimized by the fact that excess or obsolete parts can generally be returned to the manufacturer.

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Sonic amortizes leasehold
improvements over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the remaining lease life. This lease life includes
renewal options if a renewal has been determined to be reasonably assured. The range of estimated useful lives is
as follows:

Leasehold and land improvements ... ........ ... . i 10-30 years
Buildings. .. ... ... e 10-30 years
Parts and service equIpment. ....... ... ittt 7-10 years
Office equipment and fixtures. . ......... oot 3-10 years
Company vehicles ... ... oo e 3-5 years

Sonic reviews the carrying value of property and equipment and other long-term assets {other than goodwill
and franchise assets) for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. If such an indication is present, Sonic compares the carrying amount of the asset to
the estimated undiscounted cash flows related to those assets. Sonic concludes that an asset is impaired if the sum
of such expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the related asset. If Sonic determines an
asset is impaired, the impairment loss would be the amount by which the carrying amount of the related asset
exceeds its fair value. The fair value of the asset would be determined based on the quoted market prices, if
available. If quoted market prices are not available, Sonic determines fair value by using a discounted cash flow
model.

Impairment expense related to property and equipment of $0.9 million was recorded in selling, general and
administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2007. This impairment expense was related to the
abandonment of construction projects and the abandonment and disposal of dealership equipment. Additional
property and equipment impairment charges of $2.0 million were recorded during 2007 in discontinued
operations. This impairment expense was recorded based on the estimated fair value of the property and
equipment 1o be sold in connection with the disposal of the associated franchises and recorded balances.

In 2006, property and equipment impairment charges totaling $3.6 million was recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses. This impairment expense was related to decisions to abandon several construction
projects and current market information which indicated that the fair value of land parcels held for sale was less
than the recorded value. Additional property and equipment impairment charges of $7.4 million were recorded
during 2006 in discontinued operations. This impairment expense was recorded based on the estimated fair value
of the property and equipment to be sold in connection with the disposal of the associated franchises and
recorded balances.

In 2005, property and equipment impairment charges totaling $1.2 million were recorded in continuing
operations (selling, general and administrative expenses) relating to the abandonment of construction projects
and the abandonment and disposal of dealership equipment, These construction project impairment charges were
recorded in connection with the decision to abandon the construction projects. The dealership equipment
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impairment charges were recorded in connection with the decision to downsize certain wholesale parts
operations. Additional property and equipment impairment charges of $1.4 million were recorded during 2005 in
discontinued operations relating to the abandonment of construction projects and the write-down of leasehold
improvements for franchises classified as assets held for sale. The construction projects were abandoned in
connection with the decision to sell the related franchises. The impairment charge for leasehold improvements
relates to the difference between the discounted cash flows of sublease receipts for property where the leasehold
improvements reside and the carrying value of the leasehold improvements. An impairment charge for the
leasehold improvements was recorded when it was determined that Sonic would not recover the carrying value of
the leasehold improvements when considering the lease costs net of sublease receipts.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—Sonic utilizes derivative financial instruments for the
purpose of hedging the risks of certain identifiable and anticipated transactions and the fair value of certain
obligations classified as long-term debt on the accompanying Consoclidated Balance Sheets. In general, the types
of risks being hedged are those relating to the variability of cash flows, the delivery of Sonic’s Class A common
stock in connection with the conversion of convertible debt and long-term debt fair values caused by fluctuations
in interest rates. Sonic documents its risk management strategy and hedge effectiveness at the inception of and
during the term of each hedge. The only derivatives currently being used are interest rate swaps, used for the
purposes of hedging cash flows of variable rate debt and the fair value of fixed rate long-term debt, and options
to buy and sell Sonic’s Class A common stock, used for the purpose of hedging the amount of Sonic’s Class A
common stock required to be issued to holders of Sonic’s 4.25% convertible senior subordinated notes (the “2005
Convertibles™) upon conversion.

Prior to the current year, Sonic had utilized an interest rate swap agreement to effectively convert a portion
of the LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The swap agreement matured June 6, 2006 and had a
notional principal of $100.0 million. Under the terms of the swap agreement, Sonic received interest payments on
the notional amount at a rate equal to the one month LIBOR rate, adjusted monthly, and made interest payments
at a fixed rate of 4.50%. Incremental interest expense incurred (the difference between interest received and
interest paid) as a resuit of the swap was $1.2 million in 2005 and a benefit of $0.1 million in 2006, and has been
included in interest expense, other, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. The swap had
been designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge and, as a result, changes in the fair value of the swap have
been recorded in other comprehensive (loss)fincome, net of related income taxes, in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity.

In 2003, Sonic entered into five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million (collectively the “Old
Variable Swaps”) to effectively convert a portion of the Company’s fixed rate debt to a LIBOR-based variable
rate debt, Under the Old Variable Swaps’ agreements, Sonic received 8.625% on the notional amounts, paid
interest payments on the notional amounts at a rate equal to the six month LIBOR in arrears (as determined on
February 15 and August 15 of each year) plus a spread ranging from 3.50% to 3.84% with a weighted average
spread of 3.64%, through the expiration of August 15, 2013 and were designated and qualified as fair value
hedges. In the second quarter of 2005, Sonic canceled all of the Old Variable Swaps. The Old Variable Swaps
had a collective mark-to-market of a $0.4 million loss at cancellation, In connection with this cancellation, Sonic
entered into five separate new interest rate swaps with identical terms to the Old Variable Swaps except that
Sonic pays a variable rate equal to the fixed six month LIBOR rate which will be fixed on February 15 and
August 15 of each year plus a spread ranging from 3.825% 1o 3.85% (with a weighted average spread of 3.83%)
(collectively, the “New Variable Swaps™). The New Variable Swaps have been designated and qualify as fair
value hedges and, as a result, the fair value of the New Variable Swaps of $3.7 million has been recorded against
the associated fixed rate long-term debt with an equal offsetting amount of $3.7 million recorded as a derivative
liability within other long-term liabilities. The benefit realized (the difference between interest paid and interest
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received) as a result of the Old and New Swaps was $1.5 million in 2005 and an expense of $0.4 million in 2006
and $1.3 million in 2007, and has been included in interest expense, other, net in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Income.

During 2007, Sonic entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “Fixed Swaps”) to effectively convert a
portion of its LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a fixed rate. Under the terms of the Fixed Swaps, Sonic will
receive and pay interest based on the following:

Notional Pay Rate Receive Rate Malturing Date
(in millions)

$200.0 4.935% one month LIBOR May 1, 2012
$100.0 5.002% one month LIBOR June 1, 2012
$100.0 5.265% one month LIBOR June 1, 2012
$100.0 5.319% one month LIBOR July 1, 2010

$ 42 7.100% one month LIBOR July 10, 2017

$ 25.0 5.160% one month LIBOR September 1, 2012
$ 150 4.965% one month LIBOR September 1, 2012
$ 25.0 4.885% one month LIBOR Qctober 1, 2012
$ 132 4.655% one month LIBOR December 10, 2017

The Fixed Swaps have been designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and, as a result, changes in the fair
value of the Fixed Swaps have been recorded in other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of related income taxes
in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity. The amount reclassified out of other comprehensive
income into results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2007, was $0.3 million.

In connection with the issuance of Sonic’s 4.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015 in 2005
(the “2005 Convertibles”), Sonic purchased five year call options on Scnic's Class A common stock
(collectively, the “Purchased Options”) from the initial purchasers of the 2005 Convertibles. Under the terms of
the Purchased Options, which become exercisable upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, Sonic has the right
to purchase a total of approximately 6.6 million shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock from the counterparties
at a purchase price of $24.14 per share and are net share settleable upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles.
The total cost of the Purchased Options was $27.5 million, which was recorded in stockholders’ equity on the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with EITF No. 00-19, “Accounting for
Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock” and EITF
No. 01-6, “The Meaning of “Indexed to a Company’s Own Stock”. Sonic anticipates that the cost of the
Purchased Options will be deductible as original issue discount for income tax purposes over the expected life of
the 2005 Convertibles (five years). The tax benefit of this originat issue discount deduction will be recorded as a
credit to stockholders’ equity as the deduction occurs.

The cost of the Purchased Options was partially offset by the sale of warrants to acquire shares of Sonic’s
Class A common stock frem Sonic with a term of five years (collectively, the “Warrants”) to the same
counterparties with whom Sonic entered into the Purchased Options. The Warrants are exercisable for a total of
approximately 7.0 million shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock at an exercise price of $33.00 per share
subject to adjustment (at the sole discretion of the counterparties which shall be made in good faith and based on
a commercially reasonable manner) for quarterly dividends in excess of $0.12 per quarter, liquidation,
bankruptcy, delivery of shares that are not registered with the SEC, or a change in control of Sonic and other
conditions. The settlement method for the warrants is net share settlement or cash at the option of Sonic. If Sonic
chooses to deliver shares that are not registered with the SEC, the number of shares to be delivered will be
determined by counterparties to the warrants in a commercially reasonable manner. Subject to these adjustments,
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the maximum amount of shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock that could be required to be issued under the
warrants is 24.0 million shares. The proceeds from the sale of the Warrants were $9.1 million, which was also
recorded in stockholders’ equity on the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements in accordance
with EITF No. 00-19 and EITF No. 01-6. In accordance with EITF No. 00-19, the cost of the Purchased Options
and Warrants will not be marked-to-market.

The Purchased Options and the Warrants are subject to early expiration upon the occurrence of certain
events that may or may not be within Sonic’s control. Should there be an early termination of the Purchased
Options and Warrants prior to the conversion of the 2005 Convertibles from an event outside of Sonic’s control,
the amount of shares potentially due to and due from Sonic under the Purchased Options and Warrants will be
based soley on Sonic’s Class A comnmon stock price, and the amount of time remaining on the Purchased Options
and the Warrants as set forth and agreed to upon the inception of the Purchased Options and Warrants and will be
settled in shares of Sonic’s Class A Common Stock. The net effect of the Purchased Options and the Warrants
was designed to increase the conversion price per share of Sonic’s Class A common stock from $24.14 to $33.00
(a 66.75% premium to the closing price of Sonic’s Class A common stock on the date that the 2005 Convertibles
were priced to investors) and, therefore, mitigate the potential dilution of Sonic's Class A Common Stock upon
conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, if any.

No shares of Scnic’s Class A common stock were issued or received under the Purchased Options or
Warrants in 2006 or 2007. Changes in the price of Sonic’s Class A common stock will impact the share
settlement of the 2005 Convertibles, the Purchased Options and the Warrants as follows (shares in thousands):

Shares [ssued Shares Repurchased
Stock Price at Under the 2005 Under the Shares [ssued Net Shares
M Convertibles Purchased Options wn_ts ﬂ
$24.00 — — — —
$25.00 227.0 (227.0) — - —
$26.00 473.1 (473.1) — —
$27.00 701.0 (701.0) — —_
$28.00 912.7 912.7) — —
$29.00 1,109.7 (1,109.7) — —
$30.00 1,293.6 {1,293.6) — —
$31.00 1,465.7 (1,465.7) — —
$32.00 1,627.0 (1,627.0) — —
$33.00 1,778.5 (1,778.5) — —
$34.00 1,921.1 (1,921.1) 204.7 204.7
$35.00 2,055.5 (2,055.5) 397.7 397.7
$36.00 2,182.5 (2,182.5) 579.9 579.9
$37.00 2,302.6 (2,302.6) 7523 752.3
$38.00 24164 (2,416.4) 915.6 915.6
$39.00 2,524.4 (2,524.4) 1,070.5 1,070.5
$40.00 2,627.0 (2,627.0) 1,217.7 1,217.7

Goodwill —Goodwill is recognized to the extent that the purchase price of the acquisition exceeds the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquired, including other identifiable intangible assets.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently when events or circumstances
indicate that impairment might have occurred. Based on criteria established by the applicable accounting
pronouncements, Sonic has one reporting unit. Goodwill on the balance sheet totaled $1,284.9 million at
December 31, 2007, which includes approximately $8.8 million classified in assets held for sale.
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In evaluating goodwill for impairment, if the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value,
Sonic is then required to proceed to the second step of the impairment test. The second step involves allocating
the calculated fair value to all of the assets of the reporting unit as if the calcuiated fair value was the purchase
price in a business combination. This allocation would include assigning value to any previously unrecognized
identifiable assets (including franchise assets) which means the remaining fair value that would be allocated to
goodwill would be significantly reduced. See discussion regarding franchise agreements acquired prior to July 1,
2001 in “Other Intangible Assets™ below. Sonic would then compare the fair value of the goodwill resulting from
this allocation process to the carrying value of the goodwill with the difference representing the amount of
impairment.

Sonic uses several assumptions and various fair value approaches in evaluating our goodwill for
impairment. These assumptions and approaches include an earnings multiple approach using historical cash
flows along with a discounted cash flow model utilizing estimated future earnings and Sonic’s weighted average
cost of capital.

At December 31, 2007, Sonic was not required to conduct the second step of the impairment test described
above, and Sonic recognized no impairment of the carrying value of its goodwill on the balance sheet at
December 31, 2007.

However, if in future periods Sonic determines that the fair value of its reporting unit is less than its carrying
value, Sonic believes that application of the second step of the impairment test would result in a substantial
impairment charge to goodwill and the amount of such impairment charge would likely be materially adverse to
Sonic’s consolidated operating results and financial position.

Other Intangible Assets—The principal identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill acquired in an
acquisition are rights under franchise agreements with manufacturers. Sonic classifies franchise agreements as
indefinite lived intangible assets as it has been Sonic’s experience that renewals have occurred without
substantial cost or material modifications to the underlying agreements. As such, Sonic believes that its franchise
agreements will contribute to cash flows for an indefinite period, therefore the carrying amount of franchise
rights is not amortized. Franchise agreements acquired after July 1, 2001 have been included in other intangible
assets on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Prior to July 1, 2001, franchise agreements were
recorded and amortized as part of goodwill and remain as part of goodwill on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. See Note 5 regarding impairment charges on franchise agreements. Other intangible assets
acquired in acquisitions include favorable lease agreements with definite lives which are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the remaining lease term. Sonic tests other intangible assets for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate possible impairment.

Insurance Reserves—Sonic has various seif-insured and high deductible casvalty and medical insurance
programs which require the Company to make estimates in determining the ultimate liability it may incur for
claims arising under these programs. These insurance reserves are estimated by management using actuarial
evaluations based con historical claims experience, claims processing procedures, medical cost trends and, in
certain cases, a discount factor. At December 31, 2006 and 2007, Sonic had $22.6 million and $21.3 million,
respectively, reserved for such programs.

Lease Exit Accruals—The majority of Sonic's dealership properties are leased under long-term operating
lease arrangements. When situations arise when the leased properties are no tonger utilized in operations, Sonic
records accruals for the present value of the lease payments, net of estimated sublease rentals, for the remaining
life of the operating leases and other accruals necessary to satisfy the lease commitment to the landlord. These
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situations could include the relocation of an existing facitity or the sale of a franchise whereby the buyer will not
be subleasing the property for either the remaining term of the lease or for an amount equal to Sonic’s obligation
under the lease. The lease exit accruals represent See Note 11 for further discussion.

Income Taxes—Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are
provided at currently enacted tax rates for the tax effects of carryforward items and temporary differences
beiween the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts. As a matter of course, the Company is
regularly audited by various taxing authorities and from time to time, these audits result in proposed assessments
where the ultimate resolution may result in the Company owing additional taxes. Sonic’s management believes
that the Company’s tax positions comply with applicable tax law and that the Company has adequately provided
for any reasonably foreseeable outcome related to these matters.

Sonic evaluates its tax positions using the recognition threshold and measurement attribute in accordance
with FIN 48. From time to time, Sonic engages in transactions in which the tax consequences may be subject
1o uncertainty. Significant judgment is required in assessing and estimating the tax consequences of these
transactions. Sonic determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon
examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of
the position. In evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, Sonic
presumes that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all
relevant information. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to
determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Sonic adjusts
its estimates periodically because of ongoing examinations by and settlements with the various taxing authorities,
as well as changes in tax laws, regulations and precedent. See Note 7 for discussion related to the adoption of
FIN 48,

Sonic has $9.8 million in deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss carryforwards that will expire
between 2014 and 2026. Management reviews these carryforward positions, the time remaining until expiration
and other opportunities to utilize these carryforwards in making an assessment as to whether it is more likely than
not that these carryforwards will be utilized, Sonic has recorded a valuation allowance of $1.3 million in 2007
based on its judgment that certain state carryforwards will not be utilized, Sonic has not recorded a valuation
allowance related to its remaining carryforwards because management believes it is more likely than not that
taxable income for these states will be sufficient to realize the benefits of the associated deferred tax assets.
However, the results of future operations, regulatory framework of these taxing authorities and other related
matters cannot be predicted with certainty. Therefore, actual utilization of the losses which created these deferred
tax assets which differs from the assumptions used in the development of management’s judgment could result in
a charge that will be material to the Company’s consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows,

Concentrations of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that potentially subject Sonic to concentrations of
credit risk consist principally of cash on deposit with financial institutions. At times, amounts invested with
financial institutions may exceed FDIC insurance limits. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivabies
are limited primarily to automobile manufacturers and financial institutions. The large number of customers
comprising the trade receivables balances reduces credit risk arising from trade receivables from commercial
customers.

During 2006, Scnic sold notes receivable held by its wholly owned finance subsidiary, Comerstone
Acceptance Corporation (“Comerstone”}, to a third party for approximately $26.8 million. During the third
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guarter of 2007, we disposed of substantially all of the remaining assets of Cornerstone for $34.0 million. No
material gain or loss was recorded related to either of these sales. As of December 31, 2006, Sconic had
outstanding notes receivable held by Cornerstone, of $28.5 million, net of an allowance for credit losses of $4.9
million, These notes receivable are recorded in receivables, net, and other assets on the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The counterparties to Sonic’s interest rate swaps, Purchased Options and Warrants contracts consist of three
large financial institutions. Sonic could be exposed to loss in the event of nonperformance by any of these
counterparties. However, credit ratings and concentration of risk of these financial institutions are monitored by
Sonic’s management and present no significant credit risk to Sonic.

Financial Instruments and Market Risks—As of December 31, 2006 and 2007 the fair values of Sonic’s
financial instruments including receivables, notes receivable from finance contracts, notes payable-floor plan,
trade accounts payable, payables for acquisitions and long-term debt, excluding Sonic’s 8.625% senior
subordinated notes, 3.25% convertible senior subordinated notes, 2005 Convertibles and certain notes payable to
a finance company, approximate their carrying values due either to length of maturity or existence of variable
interest rates that approximate prevailing market rates.

The fair value and carrying value of Sonic’s fixed rate long-term debt was as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2007

Carrying Carrying
Fair Value Value Fair Value Value

(dollars in thousands)

8.625% Senior Subordinated Notes (1) . ..................... $285,656 $272,530 $270,875 $272,798
5.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes (1) ............. $126,197 $128,611 $126,il6 $129,221
4,25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes (1) . ............ $209.883 $156,798 $166,059 $157,558
Mortgage NOIES ...\ er ettt e $ — $§ — $46415 $ 46415
Notes Payable to a Finance Company 2) .................... $ 27433 $ 27904 $ 25,681 § 25,490

(1) As determined by market quotations.
{2) As determined by discounted cash flows.

Sonic has variable rate notes payable—floor plan, revolving credit facilities and other variable rate notes
that expose Sonic to risks caused by fluctuations in the underlying interest rates. The total outstanding balance of
such facilities before the effects of interest rate swaps was approximately $1,181.3 million at December 31, 2006
and $1,261.8 million at December 31, 2007.

Advertising—Sonic expenses advertising costs in the period incurred, net of earned cooperative
manufacturer credits that represent reimbursements for specific, identifiable and incremental advertising costs.
Advertising expense amounted to $58.8 million, $63.6 million and $68.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, and has been classified as selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income,

Sonic has cooperative advertising reimbursement agreements with certain automobile manufacturers it
represents. [n general, these cooperative programs require Sonic to provide the manufacturer with support for
qualified, actual advertising expenditures in order to receive reimbursement under these cooperative agreements.
It is uncertain whether or not Sonic would maintain the same level of advertising expenditures if these
manufacturers discontinued their cooperative programs. Cooperative manufacturer credits classified as an offset
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to advertising expenses were $12.5 million, $16.7 million and $15.6 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively.

Segment Information—Sonic sells similar products and services, uses similar processes in selling products
and services, and sells its products and services to similar classes of customers. As a result of this and the way
Sonic manages its business, Sonic has determined it has a single segment for purposes of reporting financial
condition and results of operations.

2.  BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS
Acquisitions

Sonic’s growth strategy is focused on metropolitan markets, predominantly in the Southeast, Southwest,
Midwest and California. Where practicable, Sonic also seeks to acquire stable franchises that Sonic believes have
above average sales prospects.

During 2007, Sonic acquired or were awarded ten franchises located in Houston, Texas, Panama City,
Florida, the Los Angeles, California, market and Montgomery, Alabama, for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $212.5 million in cash, net of cash acquired, funded by cash from operations and borrowings
under the revolving credit facilities. The accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007
includes preliminary allocations of the purchase price of these 2007 acquisitions to the assets and liabilities
acquired based on their estimated fair market values at the date of acquisition and are subject to final
adjustment. As a result of these acquisitions and purchase price adjustments made related to prior year
acquisitions, Sonic has recorded the following:

*  $77.3 million of net assets relating to dealership operations;
*  $7.9 million of intangible assets representing rights acquired under franchise agreements;
. $119.2 million of goodwill, all of which is expected to be tax deductible; and

»  $8.1 million of intangible assets representing a favorable lease with a life of twenty years.

One of the acquisitions completed in 2007 provides for additional cash consideration of up to $3.0 miilion to
be paid if the dealership acquired achieves a prescribed level of earnings over a continuous twelve month period
within the five years following the acquisition. As of December 31, 2007, the acquired dealership had not
achieved the level of earnings which would result in additional consideration to be paid.

During 2006, Sonic acquired eight franchises for approximately $110.4 million in cash, net of cash acquired.
During 2005, Senic acquired five franchises for approximately $138.8 million in cash, net of cash acquired.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents a summary of consolidated results of
operations as if all of the 2007 acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of 2006, after giving effect to
certain adjustments, including interest expense on acquisition debt and related income tax effects. The pro
forma financial information does not give effect to adjustments relating to net reductions in floorplan
interest expense resulting from renegotiated floorplan financing agreements or to reductions in salaries and
fringe benefits of former owners or officers of acquired dealerships who have not been retained by Sonic or
whose salaries have been reduced pursuant to employment agreements with Sonic. The pro forma resulis
have been prepared for comparative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the results of
operations that would have occurred had the 2007 acquisitions actually been completed at the beginning of
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the periods presented. The pro forma results are also not necessarily indicative of the results of future
operations.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2007

(dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Total rEVENUES . ... oottt e s $8,516,845  $8,548,131

Gross profit . ... .. e 1,293,487 1,318,855

Income from continuing operations before taxes ............ 158,640 186,675

NELIRCOME .o vi et ittt e e et e e e e e 78,920 93,962

Diluted earnings pershare . .. ........ ... ... . . .......... 1.80 2.10
Dispositions

During 2007, Sonic disposed of 12 franchises. These disposals, along with cash received related to the
disposal of Cornerstone, generated cash of $62.9 million and resulted in a net loss of $0.6 million which is
included in discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. During 2005 and
2006, Sonic completed 22 and 12 franchise dispositions, respectively. These disposals generated cash of $61.6
million and $51.0 million, respectively. The 2005 and 2006 dispositions resulted in gains of $0.4 million and
$3.7 million, respectively.

In conjunction with franchise dispositions, Sonic generally agrees to indemnify the buyers from certain
liabilities and costs arising from operations or events that occurred prior to sale but which may or may not be
known at the time of sale, including environmental liabilities and liabilities associated from the breach of
representations or warranties made under the agreements. See Note 11 for further discussion.

In addition to the dispositions described above, as of December 31, 2007, Sonic had approved, but not
completed, the disposition of 20 additional franchises, These franchises have been identified as held for sale
because of unprofitable operations or vartous strategic constderations. The operating results of these franchises
are included in discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income, Assets to be
disposed of in connection with franchises not yet sold, which have been classified in assets held for sale in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2006 2007

{dollars in thousands)
INVENLOTIES .« vt ettt e e e e e e e 3106,581 $54,028
Property and equipment, net .......... ... ... ... . 0.n. 32,665 22,137
Goodwill ... e 12,325 8,777
Franchise assets . ....... .t i ieannenes 9,000 2,400
Assetsheldforsale ......... ... . . . o £160,571 $87.342
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Liabilities to be disposed in connection with these dispositions are comprised entirely of notes payable—
floor plan and are classified as liabilities associated with assets held for sale on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Results associated with franchises classified as discontinued operations were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
(dollars in thousands)
REVEMUES . . oottt e e e $1,062,625 $721,334  $512,163
Franchise agreement impairments . ... ................... — 2,525 3,100
Lease exitcharges .. ... .. .. i, 649 1,577 2,174
Property impairment charges . ............ .. ... . ...... 1,395 7,356 2,932
{Gain)/Loss on disposal of franchises . ................... (353) (3,541) 640
Pre-tax loSSes . . ...t i 17,433 23,054 26,585

Sonic allocates corporate-level interest to discontinued operations based on the net assets of the
discontinued operations group. Interest allocated to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007 was $3.4 million, $3.3 million and $2.7 million, respectively.

3. INVENTORIES AND RELATED NOTES PAYABLE—FLOOR PLAN

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007
(dollars in thousands)
New vehicles ... i i e i $ 827,630 $ 836,252
Usedvehicles . ..o i e e 145,028 168,851
Parts and aCCess0omes .. oo v ottt e e e 57,266 61,153
1T 68,641 80,789
$1,008,565  $1,147,045
Less inventories classified as assets held forsale ............ (106,581} (54,028)
INVNEOTIES o ittt et ettt e e e $ 991,984 $1,093.017

Sonic finances all of its new and certain of its used vehicle inventory through standardized floor plan
facilities. In conjunction with entering into a new credit agreement in 2006 as discussed in Note 6, Sonic
terminated certain of its floor plan facilities and entered into new arrangements with a syndicate of financial
institutions and manufacturer captive finance companies. As parl of the new credit agreement, Sonic may also
finance certain used vehicle inventory which in the past was financed through its revolving credit facility.

The new and used floor plan facilities bear interest at variable rates based on prime and LIBOR. The
weighted average interest rate for Sonic’s new vehicle floor plan facilities was 5.89% and 6.30% for the year
ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Sonic’s floor plan interest expense related to the new vehicle
floor plan arrangements is partially offset by amounts received from manufacturers, in the form of floor plan
assistance. Floor plan assistance received is capitalized in inventory and charged against cost of sales when the
associated inventory is sold. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, Sonic recognized
approximately $40.9 million, $42.2 million and $40.4 million, respectively, in manufacturer assistance. As a
result of manufacturer assistance recognized, the effective borrowing rate under Sonic’s new floor plan facilities
was approximately 1.96% and 3.41% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

55




SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The average interest rate for Sonic’s used vehicle floor plan facility was 5.74% and 5.90% for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The new and used floor plan facilities are collateralized by vehicle inventories and other assets, excluding
franchise agreements, of the relevant dealership subsidiary. The new and used floor plan facilities contain a
number of covenants, including, among others, covenants restricting Sonic with respect to the creation of liens
and changes in ownership, officers and key management personnel. Sonic was in compliance with all restrictive
covenants as of December 31, 2007.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,

2006 2007

(dollars in thousands)
Land . ..o e $ 25,016 $ 30.644
Building and improvements . ........ ... .. .. 000 iiiia.., 143,345 218,383
Office equipment and fixtures . .. ....... .. ... .o uy, 65,621 66,906
Parts and service equipment . ..... ... ... ... ... ... 44,778 53,091
Company vehicles ... ... ... .. 9,519 10,187
Construction in Progress ... ..vv ittt in i et 70,594 34,265
Total, al COSt . ... . e e e 358,873 413,476
Less accumulated depreciation ............................. (79,459  (98,327)
Subtotal ... ... e 279414 315,149
Lessassetsheldforsale .......... .. .. .. s, (32,665) (22,137
Less construction in progress and land expected tobe sold ....... (26,198) (6,421)
Property and equipment, net . .........ccvuerriinnnrrannnn... $220,551  $286,591

Interest capitalized in conjunction with construction projects was approximately $2.3 million, $3.7 million
and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. As of December 31, 2007,
commitments for facility construction projects totaled approximately $22.2 million.

Construction in progress and land expected to be sold represent dealership facilities and land that are
expected to be completed and sold within one year. Sonic sold $14.5 million, $26.6 million and $27.1 million in
2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, in dealership equipment and properties in sale-leaseback transactions which
resulted in no material gains and losses. Sonic has no continving involvement or obligations under these
arrangements other than lease payments.
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of franchise agreements and goodwill for the years ended December 31,

2006 and 2007 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Franchise

Agreements Goodwill
Balance, December 31, 2005 . ... e e $84,700 $1,122,538
Additions through current year acquisitions .. .......... . ... . oo il 5,000 46,737
Prior year acquisition allocations ........... ... .. ... i (700) 101
Impairment expense (discontinued operations) ................ ... ... ... .. ..., (2,525) —
Reductions from sales of franchises . .. ... ... ... ... ... . .. . .. e (2.775) (6,833
Reclassification to assets held forsale, net .. ... ... ... it iianinnn.. (4,000) (7,115
Balance, December 31, 2000 .. ... i e e $79,700 $1,155,428
Additions through current year acquisitions . . . ....... ... ... ... Lol 8,700 118,275
Prior year acquisition allocations . .......... .. ... .. (800) 956
Impairment expense (discontinued operations) .......... ... ... ... 0. (3,100) —
Reductions from sales of franchises . ... ... ... ... .. . . . . . e (1,200) (2,133)
Reclassification from assets held forsale,net ..., 6,600 3,548
Balance, December 31, 2007 .. ... i e e e $80900 $1,276,074

Franchise asset impairment expense of $3.1 million was recorded within discontinued operations in the year
ended December 31, 2007. The impairments relate to management’s estimate that the recorded franchise assets

relating to several franchises held for sale will not be recovered through the sale of those franchises.

Definite life intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,

2006 2087
{dollars in thousands)
Lease aEreements ... ...ttt e e 315853 $24,015
Less accumulated amortization . . ..... i i e (1417 (2,573
Definite life intangibles, net .. ... ... ... . ... . i L $14436 $21,442

Franchise values and definite life intangible assets are classified as Other Intangible Assets, net on the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amortization expense for definite life intangible assets was $0.3 million, $0.7 million and $1.2 million for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Future amortization expense is as follows:

Year ending December 31, (dollars in thousands)

2008 e e e e $ 1,370

2000 L e e e 1,401

2000 e e e 1,425

12205 1 O 1,515

20 e e 1,626

Thereafter . . ... . e e e 14,105
| $21,442
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following;

December 31
2006 2007
(dollars in thousands}

$350 million 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility bearing interest at 2.00 percentage

P00 1 1T $ 20,086 $ 70,000
Senior Subordinated Notes bearing interest at 8.625% maturing August 15, 2013, net of

net discount of $2,470 and $2,202, respectively. ... ... .. .. 272,530 272,798
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes bearing interest at 5.25%, maturing May 7, 2009,

net of discount of $1,489 and $879, respectively . ......... ... .. ... .. .. ... 128,611 129,221

Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes bearing interest at 4.25%, maturing

November 30, 2015, redeemable on or after October 31, 2010, net of discount of
" $3,202 and $2,442, tespectively ... ... ... 156,798 157,558
Notes payable to a finance company bearing interest from 9.52% to 10.52% (with a

weighted average of 10.19%), with combined monthly principal and interest payments

of $325, maturing November 1, 2015 through September 1, 2016, and collateralized by

letters of credit, including premium of $4,840 and $4,010, respectively ............. 27,905 25,490
Mortgage notes to finance companies, bearing interest from 6.60% to 7.03% (with a

weighted average of 6.81%) with combined monthly principal and interest payments of

$316, maturing July 2017 through May 2027, ... ... ... . .. ... . ... . ... — 46,415
Fair value of Variable Swaps ........ ... . . . . . . 4,710) 724
Other notes payable (primarily eGuipment notes) . .. ...t 114 (209)

$601,334  $701,997
Less current Maturities ... ... ... .. . .t e (2,70 4,197}
Long-termdebt .............. PPN $598,627 $697.800

The indenture governing Sonic’s 8.625% senior subordinated notes limits Sonic’s ability to pay quarterly
cash dividends in excess of $0.10 per share. Sonic may only pay quarterly cash dividends in excess of this
amount if Sonic complies with Section 1009 of the indenture governing these notes, which was filed as Exhibit
4.4 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-109426). The indenture governing Sonic’s
convertible senior subordinated notes (the “Convertibles”) does not limit Sonic’s ability to pay dividends.
Sonic’s 2006 Credit Facility permits cash dividends so long as no event of default or unmatured default (as
defined in the credit agreement) has occurred and is continuing and provided that, after giving effect to the
payment of a dividend, Sonic remains in compliance with the other terms and conditions of the credit agreement.
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Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending December 31, (Dollars in thousands)

2008 4,197

2000 e e 133,667

2000 e e e 232,149

11 1 4,808

1 5,038

Thereafter. . . ... e 322,138
Total .. e $701,997

2006 Credit Facility

On February 17, 2006, Sonic entered into a new four-year syndicated credit facility (the “2006 Credit
Facility”) with 14 financial institutions, incleding three manufacturer-affiliated finance companies, providing for
up to $1.2 billion in revolving credit and floor plan financing. The 2006 Credit Facility replaces the 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, (which was terminated February 17, 2006) and a portion of Seonic’s
existing floor plan financing arrangements.

The 2006 Credit Facility has a borrowing limit of $1.2 billion, which may be expanded up to $1.45 billion in
total credit availability upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility, up to
$700.0 million is available for new vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the “2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan
Sub-Facility™). up to $150.0 million is available for used vehicle inventory floor plan financing {the “2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility™) and up to $350.0 million is available for working capital and general corporate
purpases (the “2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility”). The amount available for borrowing under the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility is reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the aggregate face amount of any
outstanding letters of credit. The 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility matures on February 17, 2010. The 2006
New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility mature on the earlier of
February 17, 2010 or upon demand by the administrative agent at the request of more than 80% of the lenders
under those facilities.

At December 31, 2007, our revelving credit facility (part of the New Credit Facility) had a borrowing limit
of $350.0 million (the “Revolving Credit Facility”), subject to a borrowing base calculated on the basis of our
receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of certain additional collateral by one of our affiliates (the
borrowing base was approximately $385.2 million at December 31, 2007). The amount available to be borrowed
under the Revolving Credit Facility is reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the cumulative face amount of
outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2007, we had $74.8 million in letters of credit outstanding and
$205.2 million of borrowing availability.

The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility bear interest at a specified
percentage above LIBOR according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by Scnic’s Total Senior
Secured Debt to EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the
performance-based pricing grid is from 1.75% above LIBOR to 2.75% above LIBOR. The weighted average rate
of the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility during the year ended December 31, 2007 was 7.28%. In addition,
there is a quarterly commitment fee payable by Sonic on the unused portion of the 2006 Revolving Credit
Sub-Facility according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by Sonic’s Total Senior Secured Debt to
EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the performance-
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based pricing grid for the quarterly commitment fee is 0.20% to 0.45% on the unused portion of the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. The amounts outstanding under the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility
bear interest at }.00% above LIBOR. The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan
Sub-Facility bear interest at 1.125% above LIBOR. In addition, there are quarterly commitment fees of 0.20%
payable by Sonic on the unused portion of both the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility. Under the terms of collateral documents entered into with the lenders under the
2006 Credit Facility, outstanding balances under the 2006 Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of substantially
all of Sonic’s assets and the assets of substantially all of Sonic’s domestic subsidiaries, which domestic
subsidiaries also guarantee Sonic’s obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, and the pledge of certain
additionat collateral by one of Sonic’s affiliates. The collateral for the New Credit Facility also includes the
pledge of the stock or equity interests of Sonic’s dealership franchise subsidiaries, except where such a pledge is
prohibited by the applicable vehicle manufacturer.

Sonic agreed under the 2006 Credit Facility not to pledge any assets to any third party, subject to certain
stated exceptions, including floor plan financing arrangements. In addition, the 2006 Credit Facility contains
certain negative covenants, including covenants which could restrict or prohibit the payment of dividends, capital
expenditures and material dispositions of assets as well as other customary covenants and default provisions.
Specifically, the 2006 Credit Facility permits cash dividends on Sonic’s Class A and Class B common stock so
long as no event of default or unmatured default {as defined in the New Credit Facility} has occurred and is
continuing and provided that, after giving effect to the payment of a dividend, Sonic remains in compliance with
other terms and conditions of the 2006 Credit Facility. Financial covenants include required specified ratios of:

Covenant Required
Consolidated liquidity ratio ............ . o i 2115
Consolidated fixed charge coverageratio .......... ... ... ... . ... ........ =1.20
Consolidated total senior secured debt to EBITDAratio .. ................... <225

The 2006 Credit Facility contains events of default, including cross-defaults to other material indebtedness,
change of control events and events of default customary for syndicated commercial credit facilities. Upon the
occurrence of an event of default, Sonic could be required to immediately repay all outstanding amounts under
the 2006 Credit Facility.

On February 17, 2006, in conjunction with the entrance into the 2006 Credit Facility, Sonic and
substantialty all of Sonic’s domestic subsidiaries entered into collateral documents with the lenders, pursuant to
which Senic and substantially all of Sonic’s domestic subsidiaries granted a security interest in substantially all
their assets to secure Sonic’s obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, including a pledge of the stock or equity
interests of Sonic’s dealership franchise subsidiaries except where such a pledge is prohibited by the applicable
vehicle manufacturer. This grant of security interests replaces the grant under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility,
as amended.

2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as Amended

Prior to- entering into the 2006 Credit Facility, Sonic uiilized the 2001 Revolving Credit Fagcility, as
amended. The amounts outstanding under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, bore interest at 2.55
percentage points above LIBOR. The 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, included an annual
commitment fee equal to 0.25% of the unused portion of the 2001 Revolving Facility, as amended.
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Senior Suberdinated 8.625% Notes

Sonic has $275.0 million of principal amount outstanding of 8.625% senior subordinated notes due 2013
(the “8.625% Notes”). The 8.625% Notes are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of
Sonic’s existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature on August 15, 2013 and are redeemable at
Sonic’s option after August 15, 2008. In addition, up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 8.625%
Notes may be redeemed on or before August 15, 2006 with net cash proceeds from certain equity offerings.
Sonic’s obligations under the 8.625% Notes are guaranteed by Sonic’s operating domestic subsidiaries.

The indentures governing the 8.625% Notes contain certain specified restrictive and required financial
covenants. Sonic has agreed not to pledge any assets to any third parly except under certain limited
circumstances. Sonic also has agreed to certain other limitations or prohibitions concerning the incurrence of
other indebtedness, capital stock, guaranties, asset sales, investments, cash dividends to shareholders,
distributions and redemptions. Specifically, the indenture governing Sonic’s 8.625% Notes limits Sonic’s ability
to pay quarterly cash dividends on Sonic’s Class A and B common stock in excess of $0.10 per share. Sonic may
only pay quarterly cash dividends on Sonic’s Class A and B common stock if Sonic complies with Section 1009
of the indenture governing the §.625% Notes, which was filed as Exhibit 4.4 to Sonic’s Registration Statement
on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-109426). Sonic was in compliance with all restrictive covenants as of December 31,
2007.

5.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

Sonic has $130.1 million of principal amount outstanding of 5.25% convertible senior subordinated notes
due 2009 (the “2002 Convertibles”). The 2002 Convertibles are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of
payment to ail of Sonic’s existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature on May 7, 2009 and are
redeemable at Sonic’s option after May 7, 2005. Sonic’s obligations under the 2002 Convertibles are not
guaranteed by any of Sonic’s subsidiaries.

The 2002 Convertibles are convertible into shares of Class A common stock, at the option of the holder, if
as of the last day of the preceding fiscal quarter, the closing sale price of the Class A common stock for at least
20 trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading-day of such preceding fiscal
quarter is more than 110% of the conversion price per share of Class A common stock on the tast day of such
preceding fiscal quarter. If this condition is satisfied, then the 2002 Convertibles will be convertible at any time,
at the option of the holder, through maturity. The initial conversion price per share is $46.87, and will be subject
to adjustment for certain distributions on, or other changes in Sonic’s Class A common stock, if any, prior to the
conversion date. In addition, on or before May 7, 2007, a holder also may convert the 2002 Convertibles into
shares of the Class A common stock at any time after a 10 consecutive trading-day period in which the average
of the trading day prices for the 2002 Convertibles for that 10 trading-day period is less than 103% of the average
conversion value for the 2002 Convertibles during that period, The conversion value is equal to the product of the
closing sale price for Sonic’s Class A common stock on a given day multiplied by the then current conversion
rate, which is the number of shares of Class A common stock into which each $1,000 principal amount of 2002
Convertibles is then convertible, Neither of these conversion features were satisfied during 2007.

4.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In November and December 2005, Sonic issued $160.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 2005
Convertibles with net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately $156.2 million. The 2005 Convertibles bear
interest at an annual rate of 4.25% untii November 30, 2010 and 4.75% thereafter. The net proceeds were used to
repay a portion of the amounts outstanding under Sonic’s 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, and to pay
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the net cost of convertible note hedge and warrant transactions. The 2005 Convertibles are unsecured obligations
that rank equal in right of payment to all of Sonic’s existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature
on November 30, 2015 and are redeemable on or after November 30, 2010. Sonic’s obligations under the 2005
Convertibles are not guaranteed by any of Sonic’s subsidiaries. Holders of the 2005 Convertibles may convert
them into cash and shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock at an initial conversion rate of 41.4185 shares per
$£1,000 of principal amount, subject to distributions on, or other changes in Sonic’s Class A common stock, if
any, prior to the conversion date.

The 2005 Convertibles are convertible into cash and shares of Senic’s Class A common stock if prior to
October 31, 2010, during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period in which the
trading price per $1,000 principal amount of 2005 Convertibles was less than 103% of the product of the closing
price of Sonic’s Class A common stock and the applicable conversion rate for the 2005 Convertibles; if Sonic
calls the 2005 Convertibles for redemption; or upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions; or on or
after October 31, 2010. Upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, Sonic will be required to deliver cash equal to
the lesser of the aggregate principal amount of the 2005 Convertibles being converted and Sonic’s total
conversion obligation. If Sonic’s total conversion obligation exceeds the aggregate principal amount of the 2005
Convertibles being converted, Sonic will deliver shares of Class A common stock to the extent of the excess
amount, if any. None of the conversion features on the 2005 Convertibles were triggered in 2006.

Sonic used $18.5 million of the net proceeds from the sale of the 2005 Convertibles to pay the net cost of
convertible note hedge and warrant transactions entered into with the initial purchasers of the 2005 Convertibles.
The convertible note hedge and warrant transactions were designed to increase the effective conversion price per
share of Sonic’s Class A common stock from $24.14 to $33.00 and, therefore, mitigate the potential dilution
upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles at the time of conversion. See Note 1, “Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” for a discussion regarding the convertible note hedge and warrant transactions.

Notes Payable to a Finance Company

Three notes payable totaling $26.6 million in aggregate principal were assumed in connection with an
acquisition during 2005 (the “Assumed Notes™). Sonic recorded the Assumed Notes at fair value using an interest
rate of 5.35%. The interest rate used to calculate the fair value was based on a quoted market price for notes with
similar terms as of the date of assumption. As a result of calculating the fair value, a premium of $7.3 million
was recorded that will be amortized over the lives of the Assumed Notes. At December 31, 2007, the principal
balance on the Assumed Notes was $21.5 million.

Mortgage Notes

During 2007, we obtained mortgage financing totaling $46.7 million in aggregate, on four of our dealership
properties. These mortgage notes require monthly payments of principal and interest through maturity and are
secured by the underlying properties. Maturity dates range between July 2017 and November 2027. The weighted
average interest rate was 6.81% at December 31, 2007. Proceeds received were used to repay borrowings under
our 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility.

Subsidiary Guarantees

Balances outstanding under Sonic’s 8.625% Notes are guaranteed by all of Sonic’s operating domestic
subsidiaries. These guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several. The parent company has no
independent assets or operations. The non-domestic and non-operating subsidiaries that are not guarantors are
considered to be minor as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).
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7. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations consists of the following:

2005 2006 2007
(amounts in thousands}
Current

Federal ... ... . e $29,736 342,815 $40,813
SEE .. e 4,584 7,770 8,897
34,320 50,585 49710
Deferred ...t e 28,142 14,905 24,667

: Total provision for income taxes for continuing
| OPETationS .. ... $62,4672  $65490 $74,377

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with Sonic’s federal and state overall effective
income tax rate from continuing operations is as follows:

2005 2006 2007

Statutory federal rate .. ... ... . ... . .. 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
Effective state income tax rate . .. ....... ...t inenin, 1.81 3.39 4.18
OtheT . o e 0.33 1.96 0.13
Effective tax rate ... ... .. ... . i e 37.14% 40.35% 39.31%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Significant
components of Sonic’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2006 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance forbaddebts . ........... ..., $ 791 % 181
Accrualsandreserves . ... ... . e 32,428 32,032
Net operating loss carryforwards .. .................... 9,306 9,794
Fair valueof Fixed Swaps ............. ... ... . ..... — 9,071
Interest and state taxes associated with FIN 48 liability . ... — 6,575
Other . .o e 46 195
Total deferred tax assets .. .................. .., 42,571 57,848
Deferred tax liabilities:
Basis difference ininventory ................... ... .., (4,485) (4,396)
Basis difference in property and equipment . . ......... ... (13,783) (9,711)
Basis difference ingoodwill ... ... ...... ... .. ... ... (147,312)  (168,280)
State valuation allowance .. ....... ... i, (143) (1,303)
OUhEr - e e (2,368) 2,720)
Total deferred tax liability ....................... (168,091)  (186,412)
Net deferred tax liability . ........................ $(125,520) $(128,564)
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Net current deferred tax assets are recorded in other current assets on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2007, after considering the effect of state valuation allowances, Sonic had
state net operating loss carryforwards of $236.9 million that will expire between 2014 and 2027.

Sonic adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As allowed in the year of adoption, Sonic
recorded a charge of $8.6 million to 2007 beginning retained earnings resulting from its initial application of the
provisions of FIN 48. At January 1, 2007, Sonic had liabilities of $23.4 million recorded related to unrecognized
tax benefits. Included in the liabilities retated to unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007, is $4.7 million
related to interest and penalties which Sonic has estimated may be paid as a result of its tax positions. It is
Sonic’s policy to classify the expense related to interest and penalties to be paid on underpayments of income
taxes within income tax expense. A summary of the changes in the liability related to Sonic’s unrecognized tax
benefits is presented below.

(In thousands)

Unrecognized tax benefit liability, January 1,2007 (1) .................. $18,659
Prior period positions:

1 Tor = 1 1T A PR 273

DECreaseS o . i e e 42)
Current period positions ..... ... i i e 2,755
Settlements .. ... ... ... e e e (275)
Lapse of statute of limitations . ...... ... ... ... . i i, (2,449)
Unrecognized tax benefit liability, December 31,2007 (2) ............... $18,921

(1)} Excludes accrued interest and penalties of $4.7 million at January 1, 2007
(2) Excludes accrued interest and penalties of $5.6 million at December 31, 2007

Approximately $13.5 million of the unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2007 would ultimately
affect the income tax rate if ultimately recognized. Included in the December 31, 2007 recorded liability is $5.6
million related to interest and penalties which Sonic has estimated may be paid as a result of its tax positions. Sonic
does not anticipate any significant changes in its unrecognized tax benefit tiability within the next twelve months.

Sonic and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple state
jurisdictions. Sonic’s 2004 through 2007 U.S. federal income tax returns remain open to examination by the
Internal Revenue Service. Sonic and its subsidiaries’ state income tax returns are open to examination by state
taxing authorities for years ranging from 2000 to 2007.

8. RELATED PARTIES
Registration Rights Agreement

Prior to the Company’s initial public offering, Sonic signed a Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
June 30, 1997 with Sonic Financial Corporation (“SFC™), O. Bruton Smith, B. Scott Smith and William S. Egan
(collectively, the “Class B Registration Rights Holders”). SFC currently owns 8,881,250 shares of Class B
common stock; O. Bruton Smith, 2,171,250 shares; and B. Scott Smith, 976,875 shares; all of which are covered
by the Registration Rights Agreement. The Egan Group LLC, an assignee of William 8. Egan, also owns certain
shares of Class A common stock to which the Registration Rights Agreement applies. 1f, among other things
provided in Sonic’s charter, offers and sales of shares of Class B common stock are registered with tbe SEC, then
such shares will automatically convert into a like number of shares of Class A common stock. The Registration
Rights Agreement expired in November 2007. SFC is controlled by O. Bruton Smith.
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Other Transactions

Sonic leases office space in Charlotte from a subsidiary of SFC for a majority of its headquarters personnel.
Annual aggregate rent under this lease was approximately $0.5 million in 2005, $0.6 million in 2006 and $0.6
million in 2007.

Sonic rents various aircraft owned by SFC, subject to their availability, for business-related travel by Sonic
executives. Sonic incurred costs of approximately $0.8 million in 2005, $1.2 million in 2006 and $1.0 million in
2007 for the vse of these aircraft,

Certain of Sonic’s dealerships purchase the Z-Max oil additive product from Qil Chem Research Company,
a subsidiary of Speedway Motorsports, Inc. (“SMI™) who’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is O. Bruton
Smith, for resale to service custemers of Sonic’s dealerships in the ordinary course of business. Total purchases
from Oil Chem by Sonic dealerships totaled approximately $1.5 million in 2005, $1.4 million in 2006 and $1.9
million in 2007.

Sonic donates cash throughout the year to Speedway Children's Charities, a non-profit organization founded
by O. Bruton Smith. O. Bruton Smith and B. Scott Smith are both board members of Speedway Children’s
Charities. Donations to this organization amounted to $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million in 2005, 2006
and 2007, respectively.

9. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND PER SHARE DATA

Preferred Stock—Sonic has 3 million shares of “blank check™ preferred stock authorized with such
designations, rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The
Board of Directors has designated 300,000 shares of preferred stock as Class A convertible preferred stock, par
value $0.10 per share (the “Preferred Stock™) which is divided into 100,000 shares of Series I Preferred Stock,
100,000 shares of Series II Preferred Stock, and 100,000 shares of Series I1I Preferred Stock. There were no
shares of Preferred Stock issued or outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2007,

Common Stock—Sonic has two classes of common stock. Sonic has authorized 100.0 million shares of
Class A common stock at a par value of $0.01 per share. Class A common stock entitles its holder to one vote per
share, Sonic has also authorized 30 million shares of Class B common stock at a par value of $.01 per share.
Class B common stock entitles its holder to ten votes per share, except in certain circumstances. Each share of
Class B common stock is convertible into one share of Class A common stock either upon voluntary conversion
at the option of the holder, or automatically upon the occurrence of certain events, as provided in Sonic’s charter.
The two classes of stock share equally in dividends and in the event of liquidation.

Hedge and Warrants on 4.25% Convertible Notes—In connection with the sale of $160.0 million of 4.25%
convertible notes in the fourth quarter of 2006, Sonic executed a hedge and sold warrants 10 purchase shares of
Sonic Class A commaon stock designed to mitigate the dilutive effect of the delivery of Sonic’s Class A common
stock upon conversion of these convertible notes. See Note 6,

Share Repurchases—Sonic’s Board of Directors has authorized Sonic to expend up to $235.0 million to
repurchase shares of its Class A common stock or redeem securities convertible into Class A common stock. As
of December 31, 2007, Sonic had repurchased a total of 13,115,164 shares of Class A common stock at an
average price per share of approximately $15.85 and had redeemed 13,801.5 shares of Class A convertible
preferred stock at an average price of $1,000 per share. As of December 31, 2007, Sonic had $33.3 million
remaining under the Board’s authorization.
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Per Share Data—The calculation of diluted earnings per share considers the potential dilutive effect of
options and shares under Sonic’s stock compensation plans, Class A common stock purchase warrants, the 2002

Convertibles and the 2005 Convertibles (see Notes 1 and 6). The following table illustrates the dilutive effect of
such items on earnings per share:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Income Loss From
From Continning Discontinued
Operations Qperations Net Income
Per Share Per Share Per Share
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

(amounts in thousands except per share amounts)
Basic Earnings Per Share ......... 41,817 $105 713  $2.53  $(13,852) $(0.33) $91,861 $2.20
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Contingently Convertible Debt
(2002 Convertibles) .. ...... 2,776 4,344 194 4,538
Stock Compensation Plans . ... 940

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share .. 45,533 $110,057 $242  $(13,658) $(0.30) $96,399 §$2.12

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Income Loss From
From Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Net Income
Per Share Per Share Per Share
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

(amounts in thousands except per share amounts)
Basic Earnings Per Share ......... 42336 $ 96,832 $2.29 $(15715) $(0.37 $81,117  $1.92
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Contingently Convertible Debt

(2002 Convertibles) . . ... ... 2,776 4,093 271 4364
Contingently Convertible Debt

(2005 Convertibles) .. ... ... 302
Stock Compensation Plans . . .. 851

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share .. 46,265 $100,925 $2.18  3$(15444) $(0.33) 3$85481 31.85

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Income Loss From
From Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Net Income
Per Share Per Share Per Share
Shares Amournt Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

{amounts in thousands except per share amounts)
Basic Earnings Per Share ......... 42,479 $114.836  $2.70  $(19,334) $(0.45) $95502 3225
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Contingently Convertible Debt

(2002 Convertibles) .. ...... 2,776 4,203 223 4,426
Contingently Convertible Debt

(2005 Convertibles) . .. ..... 819
Stock Compensation Plans .. .. 867

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share .. 46,941 $119,039  $2.54  $(19,111) $(0.41) $99,928  $2.13
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In addition to the stock options included in the tables above, options to purchase approximately 1.7 million,
0.6 million and 1.8 million shares of Class A common stock were outstanding during the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2006 and 2007, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted net income
per share because the options were antidilutive.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all of the employees of Sonic are eligible to participate in a 401(k) plan. In accordance with
the formula in the 401(k) plan agreement, contributions by Sonic to the 401(k) plan were $4.5 million in 2005,
$5.6 million in 2006 and $6.0 million in 2007.

Stock Compensation Plans

Effective January 1, 2006, Sonic adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, using the modified
prospective application transition method. Prior to Sonic’s adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), benefits of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensation costs were reported as operating cash flows on the statement of
cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires excess 1ax benefits to be reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as
a reduction of taxes paid on the statement of cash flows.

Sonic currently has two stock compensation plans, the Sonic Automotive, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
(the *2004 Plan”} and the 2005 Formula Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the “2005 Formula
Plan™) (collectively, the “Stock Plans”). During the second quarter of 2007, Sonic’s stockholders approved
amendments to the 2004 Plan and the 2005 Formula Plan to increase the number of shares issuable under these
plans to 3,000,000 and 90,000, respectively. The First America Automotive, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (the
“First America Plan™} and the Sonic Automotive, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan”) terminated
during the third and fourth quarters, respectively.

The 2004 Plan and the 1997 Plan were adopted by the Board of Directors in order to attract and retain key
personnel and currently authorize the issuance of options to purchase 2.0 million and 9.0 million shares of
Class A common stock, respectively. Under the 2004 Plan and the 1997 Plan, options to purchase shares of
Class A common stock may be granted to key employees of Sonic and its subsidiaries and to officers, directors,
consultants and other individuals providing services to Sonic. The options are granted at the fair market value of
Sonic’s Class A common stock at the date of grant, vest over a period ranging from six months to three years, are
exercisable upon vesting and expire ten years from the date of grant. The 2004 Plan also authorizes the issuance
of restricted stock. Restricted stock issued under the 2004 plan generally vests at the end of a three year term.
The 2005 Formula Plan provides for grants of restricted stock to non-employee directors and restrictions on those
shares generally expire one year from the date of grant. Individuals receiving restricted shares under both the
2005 Formula Plan and the 2004 Plan have voting rights and receive dividends on unvested shares. The First
America Plan was assumed by Sonic in connection with the purchase of First America Automotive in 1999,
Although Sonic does not issue stock-based awards under the First America Plan, options to purchase Sonic’s
Class A common stock were cutstanding under this plan during the year ended December 31, 2006. Sonic issues
new shares of Ciass A common stock to employees and directors to satisfy its option exercise and stock grant
obligations. To offset the effects of these transactions, Sonic will periodically buy back shares of Class A
common stock after considering cash flow, market conditions and other factors.
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A summary of the status of the options related to the Stock Plans, 1997 Plan and the First American Plan is
presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average  Remaining

Options Exercise Price Exercise  Contractual Aggregate
Outstanding Per Share Price Term Intrinsic Value
(in thousands) {in years) (in thousands)
Balance—December 31,2006 ........... 4,734 $ 7.01-37.50 $20.24 6.00 $53,323
Granted .......... . it 358 23.29-30.07  29.21
Exercised ........... .. ..o i, (771) 7.01-26.92 17.43
Forfeited ........... ... ... et (383) 13.12-37.50 2595
Balance—December 31,2007 ........... 3938 $ 7.80-37.50 $21.05 53 $ 9,707
Exercisable . ... .. .. ... .. .. ... ... 3,069 $ 7.80-37.50 $19.92 4.5 $ 9,678
December 31,
2005 2006 2007

(amounts in thousands,
except per option data)

Weighted Average Grant-Date Fair Value of Options Granted . ................ $ 750 $ 787 § 824
Intrinsic Value of Options Exercised . ...... ... ... ... oo $ 3565 $11,972 $9,226
Fair Value of Shares Vested .. ... ... ... ... i i $14,135 §$ 4356 $4,499

Sonic recognized compensation expense within selling, general and administrative expenses related to the
options in the Stock Plans of $4.5 million and $5.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. Tax benefits recognized related to the compensation expenses were $1.7 million and $2.1 million
for the vears ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. No compensation expense related to these plans
was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2005. The total compensation cost related to unvested options not
yet recognized at December 31, 2007 was $2.4 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 0.5 years. Sonic received $13.4 million in cash from the exercise of stock options during the year ended
December 31, 2007. Sonic’s tax benefit associated with these stock option exercises was $3.5 million during the
year ended December 31, 2007,

Black-Scholes Assumptions

The weighted average fair value of options granted in each of the three years ended December 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

2005 2006 2007
Stock Option Plans
Dividendyield .......... .. .. o oo 2.02-2.50% 1.82-2.06% 1.60-2.06%
Risk free interestrates ..........cccvvueiimuaenanoon 3.58-4.34% 4.54-497% 4.04-491%
Expectedlives .......... ... ... .. i, 5 years 3.5-5 years  3.5-5 years
Volatility . ... 47.69% 36.60% 33.10%

Sonic used an expected term of three and a half to five years for current year option grants based on several
facts associated with past grants and exercises. First, the historical exercise experience indicates that the expected
term is at least three years (consistent with the three year graded vesting period attached to the majority of these
options) and the majority of Sonic’s grants are in the early to middle stages of their contractual terms of ten
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years, second, the contractual term of alt of Sonic’s options is ten years; and third, since Sonic began granting
stock options in 1997, none of these stock option grants have completed their contractual term of ten years.

Expected volatility was estimated using Sonic’s stock price over the last three years. Prior to this period,
Sonic was a fast growing, new company in an un-established retail sector of the equity market. As such, the
volatility of Sonic’s stock between 1997 and 2002 was higher than what is expected in the future due to a change
in strategy that includes slowing the pace of acquisitions and the payment of quarterly dividends and the
establishment of the retail automotive sector in the equity market.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), Sonic accounted for stock option grants under the recognition
and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related
interpretations. In accordance with those provisions, because the exercise price of all options granted under those
plans equaled the market value of the underlying stock at the grant date, no stock-based employee compensation
cost was recorded in the accompanying financial statements for periods prior to January 1, 2006. Using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model for all options granted, the following table illustrates what net income and
earnings per share would have been if Sonic had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation for the year ended
December 31, 2005:

For the Year ended

December 31, 2005

(dollars in thousands
except per share amounts)

Netincomeasrestated . ... ..ttt ie i iaaens $91.861
Fair value compensation cost, net of tax benefits of

3,53 for 2005 ... e e e (5,523)
Pro forma net inCOME . .. .. .. i et et eranns $86,338

Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Netincomeasrestated . .. ... ittt et inirans $ 2.20
Fair value compensation cost, netoftax ...................... 0.14)
Pro forma net INCOME ... vv vttt e et i e et ee i inaans $ 2.06

Dituted earnings (loss) per share:

Netincome asrestated . ... ..ot e e et eie i annn $ 212
Fair value compensation cost, netoftax . ................. ... 0.12)
Pro forma netincome ..ot nee it i et $ 2.00

A summary of the status of restricted stock and restricted stock unit grants related to the Stock Plans is
presented below:

Unvested Restricted Weighted Average
Stock and Restricted Grant Date Fair

Stock Units Yalue
(in thousands)
Balance—December 31,2006 . ... ... .. . ... 265 $25.52
Granted ... ... e 328 22.53
Forfeited ... ... .. .. ... e (166) 23.76
Vested .. ... i e {16) 25.68
Balance—December 31,2007 .. ... ... .. .. 411 $23.76
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In the year ended December 31, 2007, approximately 328,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock
and restricted stock units were awarded to Sonic’s Board of Directors, executive officers and other key associates
under the 2004 Plan. The awards of restricted shares to directors were made pursuant to the 2005 Formula Plan
and vest the day before the next annual meeting of Sonic’s stockholders. The awards to executive officers and
other key associates were made in connection with establishing the objective performance criteria for 2007
incentive compensation and cliff-vest in three years. The shares and units awarded to executive officers and other
key associates are subject to forfeiture, in whole or in part, based upon specified measures of Sonic’s earnings
per share performance for the 2007 fiscal year, continuation of employment and compliance with any restrictive
covenants contained in any agreement between Sonic and the respective officer and other key associates. These
awards are generally subject to the same restrictions and rights as the shares of restricted stock granted to certain
executive officers in 2005 and 2006, except that the restricted stock units do not have voting rights and that
dividends on the restricted stock units are paid to the holders in the year subsequent to the dividend declarations.
Sonic recognized compensation expense within selling, general and administrative expenses related to unvested
restricted stock and restricted stock units of $1.3 million, $2.3 millien and $0.9 million in the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Tax benefits recognized related to the compensation expenses
were $0.5 million, $0.9 million and $0.3 million for the vears ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. Total compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock not yet recognized at December 31,
2007 was $6.2 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Facility and Equipment Leases

During 2007, Sonic’s management decided to cease using several dealership properties which are leased
under operating leases. Accordingly, accruals in the amount of $3.4 million were established in the year ended
December 31, 2007 for the present value of the lease payments, net of estimated sublease rentals, for the
remaining life of the operating leases and other accruals necessary to satisfy the lease commitment to the
landlord. . Of the $3.4 million accrual established in the year ended December 31, 2007, $1.2 million was
recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses and $2.2 million was recorded in discontinued
operations. A summary of the activity of these operating lease accruals consists of the following;

(dollars in thousands)

Balance, December 31,2006 . .. .. ... .o, $ 8,731
Lease eXit eXPense . .. .. .. .vi ettt et 3,370
Payments ... .. (2,841)
Reversals . ... .. (1,096)
Balance, December 31,2007 .. ... .. ... $ 8,164
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The Company leases facilities for the majority of its dealership operations under operating lease
arrangemenis. These facility lease arrangements generally have fifieen to twenty year terms with one or two five
year renewal optiens and do not contain provisions for contingent rent related to dealership’s operations.
Approximately 20% of these facility leases are based on capitalization rates with payments that vary based on
interest rates. The Company also leases certain equipment for use in dealership operations. These equipment
lease arrangements generally have three to five year terms with one or two year renewal options. Minimum
future lease payments for both facility and equipment leases and sub-leases to be received as required under
noncancelable operating leases for both continuing and discontinued operations based on interest rates as of the
inception of each lease are as follows:

Miniglul:::lrf,ease Receipts from
Year ending December 31, Payments, Net Future Subleases
{Dollars in thousands)

2008 L e $116,209 $ (9,492)
2000 e $105,943 (8,490)
2000 e $101,280 (7,729)
2000 e § 97,326 (7,175}
2002 e e § 93,162 (7,123)
Thereafler . . . .. oo e $543,624 (50,364)

Total lease expense for continuing operations in 2005, 2006 and 2007 was approximately $108.1 million,
$114.6 million and $121.6 million, respectively. Total lease expense for discontinued operations in 2005, 2006
and 2007 was approximately $10.8 million, $22.3 million and $18.1 million, respectively. The total net
contingent rent benefit relating to a decrease in interest rates since the underlying leases commenced for
continuing operations in 2006 and 2007 was $3.1 million and $2.2 million, respectively. The total net contingent
rent benefit relating to a decrease in interest rates since the underlying leases commenced for discontinued
operations in 2006 and 2007 was $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively. Total contingent rent expense
relating to an increase in interest rates since the underlying leases commenced for continuing and discontinued
operations in 2007 was $2.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively,

Guarantees and Indemnifications

In accordance with the terms of Sonic’s operating lease agreements, Sonic’s dealership subsidiaries, acting
as lessees, generally agree to indemnify the lessor from certain exposure arising as a result of the use of the
leased premises, including environmental exposure and repairs to leased property upon termination of the lease.
In addition, Sonic has generally agreed to indemnify the lessor in the event of a breach of the lease by the lessee.

In connection with franchise dispositions, certain of Sonic’s dealership subsidiaries have assigned or sublet
to the buyer its interests in real property leases associated with such dealerships. In general, the subsidiaries
retain responsibility for the performance of certain obligations under such leases, including rent payments, and
repairs to leased property upon termination of the lease, to the extent that the assignee or sub lessee does not
perform. These obligations are included within the future minimum lease payments, net, in the table above.
However, there are situations where Sonic has assigned a lease to the buyer and Sonic was not able to obtain a
release from the landlord. In these situations, although Sonic is no longer the primary obligor, Sonic is
contingently liable if the buyer does not perform under the lease terms. The total estimated minimum lease
payments remaining related to these leases totaled $1.9 million at December 31, 2007. However, in accordance
with the terms of the assignment and sublease agreements, the assignees and sub lessees have generally agreed o
indemnify Sonic and its subsidianies in the event of non-performance. Additionally, in connection with certain
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dispositions, Sonic has obtained indemnifications from the parent company or owners of these assignees and sub
lessees in the event of non-performance.

In accordance with the terms of agreements entered into for the sale of Sonic’s franchises, Sonic generally
agrees to indemnify the buyer from certain liabilities and costs arising subsequent to the date of sale, including
environmental exposure and exposure resulting from the breach of representations or warranties made in
accordance with the agreement. While Sonic’s exposure with respect to environmental remediation and repairs is
difficult to quantify, Sonic’s maximum exposure associated with these general indemnifications was $14.8
million at December 31, 2007. These indemnifications generally expire within a period of one to three years
following the date of sale. The estimated fair value of these indemnifications was not material.

Legal Matters

Sonic is a defendant in the matter of Galura, et al. v, Sonic Automotive, Inc., a private civil action filed in
the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County, Florida. In this action, originally filed on December 30, 2002, the
plaintiffs allege that Sonic and Sonic’s Florida dealerships sold an antitheft protection product in a deceptive or
otherwise illegal manner, and further sought representation on behalf of any customer of any of Sonic’s Florida
dealerships who purchased the antitheft protection product since December 30, 1998. The plaintiffs are seeking
monetary damages and injunctive relief on behalf of this class of customers. In June 2005, the court granted the
plaintiffs’ motion for certification of the requested class of customers, but the court has made no finding to date
regarding actual liability in this lawsuit. Sonic subsequently filed a notice of appeal of the court’s class
certification ruling with the Florida Court of Appeals. In April 2007, the Florida Court of Appeals affirmed a
portion of the trial court’s class certification, and overruled a portion of the trial court’s class certification. Sonic
intends to continue its vigorous appeal and defense of this lawsuit and to assert available defenses. However, an
adverse resolution of this lawsuit could result in the payment of significant costs and damages, which could have
a material adverse effect on Sonic’s future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Currently,
Sonic is unable 10 estimate a range of potential loss related to this matter.

Sonic is involved, and expects to continue to be involved, in numerous legal and administrative proceedings
arising out of the conduct of Sonic’s business, including regulatory investigations and private civil actions
brought by plaintiffs purporting to represent a potential class or for which a class has been certified. Although
Sonic vigorously defends itself in all legal and administrative proceedings, the outcomes of pending and future
proceedings arising out of the conduct of Sonic’s business, including litigation with customers, employment
related lawsuits, contractual disputes, class actions, purported class actions and actions brought by governmental
authorities, cannot be predicted with certainty. An unfavorable resolution of one or more of these matters could
have a material adverse effect on Sonic’s business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or
prospects. Included in other accrued liabilities at December 3!, 2006 and 2007 were $2.0 million and $1.9
million, respectively, in reserves that Sonic has provided for pending proceedings.
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

12. SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes Sonic’s results of operations as presented in the Consolidated Statements of
Income by quarter for 2006 and 2007.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(Doltars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2006:

Totalrevenues .......... ... . . e, $1.882,254 $2,071,736 $2,067,830 $1,963,259
Grossprofit ... .. .. .. . $ 295244 § 312,014 §$ 315978 § 305,055
Netincome ............ ... iiiiiiinanaana, $ 17082 % 12,188 $ 28608 $ 23,239
Earnings per share—Basic ..................... $ 041 % 029 § 0.68 $ 0.54
Earnings per share—Diluted . ................... 3 039 3% 029 3% 065 $ 0.52
Year Ended December 31, 2007:
Totalrevenues . ... ... .. ..., $1,947.818 $2,089.976 $2,185.875 $2,113,264
Grossprofit ... ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... ... ... $ 308315 $ 325939 § 334,953 § 322,378
Netincome ...................oiiiiiiiiia. $ 19991 $ 26368 $ 26107 $ 23,036
Earnings per share—Basic ..................... $ 047 $ 061 $ 061 $ 0.55
Earnings per share—Diluted .................... $ 044 $ 057 % 058 §$ 0.54

(1) Operations are subject to seasonal variations. The first and fourth quarters generally contribute less
operating profits than the second and third quarters. Parts and service demand remains more stable
throughout the year.

(2) The sum of diluted net income per share for the quarters may not equal the full year amount due to weighted
average common shares being calculated on a quarterly versus annual basis.

{3} Amounts presented differ from amounts previously reported on Form 10-Q due to the classification of
certain franchises in discontinved and continuing operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144 (see Note 2).
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Corporate Governance

Sonic’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the
charters for the committees of the Board of Directors
and Corporate Governance Guidelines are available
on our website at www.sonicautomotive.com and in
print upon request to Sonic’s Secretary at the
principal executive offices.

Management’s Certifications

The certifications of Sonic’s principal executive
officer and principal financial officer required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding the quality of Sonic’s
public disclosure have been included as Exhibits 31
and 32 in Sonic’s 2007 Annual Report on Form
10-K. In addition, in 2007, Sonic’s Chief Executive
Officer provided to the New York Stock Exchange
the annual CEO certification regarding Sonic’s
compliance with the New York Stock Exchange’s
corporate governance listing standards.

Form 10-K

A stockholder may obtain a free copy of Sonic’s
2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, which was
filed with the SEC, by contacting:

Todd Atenhan

Sonic Automotive, Inc.
Investor Relations

6415 Idlewild Road, Suite 109
Charlotte, NC 28212

Phone: 888-766-4218

This Annual Report contains numerous “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These forward-looking statements address our future
objectives, plans and goals, as well as our intent,
beliefs and current expectations regarding future
operating performance, and can generally be
identified by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,”
“believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,”
“foresee” and other similar words or phrases.
Specific events addressed by these forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to:

LEINT

» future acquisitions or dispositions;

¢ industry trends;

= general econcmic  trends, including
employment rates and consumer confidence
levels;
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» vyehicle sales rates and same store sales
growth;

* our financing plans; and

* our business and growth strategies.

These forward-looking statements are based on our
current estimates and assumptions and involve
various risks and uncertainties. As a result, you are
cautioned that these forward-looking statements are
not guarantees of future performance, and that actual
results could differ materially from those projected in
these forward-looking statements. Factors which may
cause actual results to differ materially from our
projections include those risks described in Item [A
of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and elsewhere in this
Annual Report, as well as:

* our ability to generate sufficient cash flows
or obtain additional financing to support
acquisitions, capital expenditures, our share
repurchase program, dividends on our
Common Stock and general operating
activities:

« the reputation and financial condition of
vehicle manofacturers whose brands we
represent, the financial incentives they offer
and their ability to design, manufacture,
deliver and market their vehicles
successfully;

* our relationships with manufacturers, which
may affect our ability to complete additional
acquisitions;

¢ changes in laws and regulations governing
the operation of automobile f{ranchises,
accounting standards, taxation requirements,
and environmental laws;

« general economic conditions in the markets
in which we operate, including fluctuations
in interest rates, employment levels, the
level of consumer spending and consumer
credit availability;

« high competition in the automotive retailing
industry, which not only creates pricing
pressures on the products and services we
offer, but on businesses we seek to acquire;
and

* the timing of and our ability to successfully
integrate recent and potential future
acquisitions.
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. Cash
M Dividend
High Low  Declared

2007

FirstQuarter ................. $32.86 $28.04 $0.12
Second Quarter . .............. 31.82 2836 0.12
Third Quarter ................ 30.26 2394 0.12
Fourth Quarter . .............. 25.57 19.36 0.12
2006

FirstQuarter ................. $2843 822.72 $0.12
Second Quarter . .............. 28.53 2185 0.2
Third Quarter ................ 23.31 21.08 0.12
Fourth Quarter . .............. 2950 2276 0.12

Class B Common Steck
No public trading market
Record holders at March 8, 2008: 3

Stock Performance Graph

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the cumulative
stockholder return on Sonic’s Class A Common Stock against the
cumulative total return of each of the Standard and Poor's 500
Stock Index and a Peer Group Index for the time period
commencing December 31, 2002 and ending December 31, 2007.
The companies used in the Peer Group Index consist of
AutoNation, Group 1 Automotive, Penske Auto Group, Lithia
Motors and Asbury Autemotive Group. All these companies are
publicly traded companies known by Sonic to be involved in the
automotive retail industry. The graph assumes that $100 was
invested on December 31, 2002 in each of Sonic’s Cluss A
Common Stock, the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the
Peer Group Index and that all dividends were reinvested.
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